
 

 

   

 
 

    

  

Contact: Alan Maher 

Tel: 01246 217391 

Email: Alan.maher@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk  

Date: Wednesday, 16 November 2022 

 
To: Members of the Cabinet 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Cabinet to be held on Thursday, 24 November 2022, at 
4.30 pm in District Council Offices, 2013 Mill Lane, Wingerworth, Chesterfield, S42 6NG. 
The Meeting will be live streamed on the Council’s website.  
 
The meeting will also be live streamed from the Council’s website on its You Tube 
Channel. Click on the following link if you want to view the meeting: 
 
North East Derbyshire District Council - YouTube 
 
 
Yours sincerely  
 

 
Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  
 
 

 
Cabinet Members 

 

  
Councillor A Dale (Chair) Councillor C Cupit (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor M Foster Councillor J Kenyon 
Councillor A Powell Councillor C Renwick 
  

 
For further information about this meeting please contact Alan Maher 01246 217391 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:Alan.maher@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAtAqurAPSDhWR0zf_M6XGg?view_as=subscriber


 

 

 

Notice of Meeting to be held in Private 
 
It is intended that part of this meeting will be held in private under the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012. The matters to be considered in private are listed under the heading Private 
Session. The categories of exempt information that are likely to be disclosed during the 
discussion of these items, as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972, are listed below each item. 
 
No representations have been received requesting that these items be open to the public. 

 

Page 2



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

Public Session 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

 Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable 
pecuniary interest and/or other interest, not already on their register of interests, 
in any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the appropriate time.  
 

3   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 6 - 9) 
 

 To approve as a correct record and the Leader to sign the attached Minutes of the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 8 September 2022.  
 

4   Proposed Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 2022-23  (Pages 10 - 32) 
 

 Report of the Chairs of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee, 
the Communities Scrutiny Committee, the Growth Scrutiny Committee and the 
Organisation Scrutiny Committee  
 

5   Tourism - Business and Non Business Scrutiny Review  (Pages 33 - 52) 
 

 Report of Councillor J Kenyon, Portfolio Holder for Economy, Transformation and 
Climate Change.  
 

6   Council Plan Targets Performance Update 2022-23:  Quarter 2  (Pages 53 - 
72) 
 

 Report of Councillor A Dale, Leader of the Council.  
 

7   Medium Term Financial Plan - Revised Budgets 2022-23  (Pages 73 - 87) 
 

 Report of Councillor A Dale, Leader of the Council.  
 
Key Decision 
 

8   Development of a Community Outreach Service  (Pages 88 - 94) 
 

 Report of Councillor C Cupit, Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services.  
 

9   Urgent Items (Public)   
 

 To consider any other matter which the Leader is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with the provisions of Statutory 
Instrument 2012 No 2089, Regulation 11.  
 

10   Exclusion of Public   
 

 The Leader to move:-  

Page 3



 

 

 
That the public be excluded from the meeting during the discussion of the 
following items of business to avoid the disclosure to them of exempt information 
as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, (as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 
2006).  [The category of exempt information is stated after each item].  
 

Private Session 
 

11   Sharley Park Development - NOW PUBLISHED  (Pages 95 - 111) 
 

 Report of Councillor A Powell, Portfolio Holder for Leisure, Communities and 
Communications 
 
Key Decision                                                       Paragraph 3 
 

12   Clay Cross Town Deal Outline Business Case, Town Centre Regeneration 
(Local Assurance)  (Pages 112 - 209) 
 

 Report of Councillor J Kenyon, Portfolio Holder for Economy, Transformation and 
Climate Change.  
 
Key Decision                                                                                   Paragraph 3 
 

13   Clay Cross Town Deal Outline Business Case, Low Carbon Challenge Fund 
(Local Assurance)  (Pages 210 - 266) 
 

 Report of Councillor J Kenyon, Portfolio Holder for Economy, Transformation and 
Climate Change.  
 
Key Decision                                                                                   Paragraph 3 
 

14   Urgent Items (Private)   
 

 To consider any other matter which the Leader is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with the provisions of Statutory 
Instrument 2012 No 2089, Regulations 5 and 11.  
 

___________ 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

Page 5



 

1 

CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Alex Dale (Chair) (in the Chair) 
Councillor Charlotte Cupit (Vice-Chair) 

 
Councillor Jeremy Kenyon Councillor Alan Powell 
Councillor Carolyn Renwick  
 
Also Present: 
 
L Hickin Managing Director - Head of Paid Service 
J Dethick Director of Finance and Resources & (Section 151 Officer) 
M Broughton Director of Growth and Assets 
S Sternberg Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer 
A Maher Interim Governance Manager 
T Scott Governance and Scrutiny Officer 
 
CAB/
22/2
2-23 

Her Majesty The Queen 
 
Cabinet expressed its deep sadness at the illness of Her Majesty the Queen. 
Members made clear that the thoughts and prayers of the whole Council were 
with Her Majesty and the Royal Family. 
 

CAB/
23/2
2-23 

Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor P Parkin. 
 
With the agreement of the Chair, Councillor M Foster contributed to the meeting 
virtually through the electronic Conference Call system. He did not participate in 
the decisions taken by Cabinet. 
 

CAB/
24/2
2-23 

Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no Declarations of Interest.  
 

CAB/
25/2
2-23 

Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
RESOLVED - That the Minutes of the meeting held on 4 August 2022 were 
approved as a true record. 
 

CAB/
26/2
2-23 

Out of Hours Scrutiny Review 
 
Cabinet considered a report of Councillor K Tait, Chair of the Communities 
Scrutiny Committee. The report set out the Committee’s findings and 
recommendations from its review of the Council’s ‘Out of Hours’ services. The 
Review had, it was explained, sought to understand what demand, if any, there 
was for Out of Hours services, what the Council currently offers beyond normal 
working hours and what would be the benefits and difficulties of introducing a 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 

2 

formal Out of Hours service.  
 
Members considered the Committee’s findings and recommendations. These 
included setting up a dedicated Out of Hours area on the Council’s website, which 
would give the key contacts for reporting those issue that may require attention 
outside of normal working hours. The Committee concluded that this would meet 
the Council’s   requirements and so there would be no need to introduce a 
specific Out of Hours service, at this time.  
 
Cabinet welcomed the Review and thanked the Committee for its valuable work. 
Members supported the recommendations and agreed that a detailed response to 
the Committee’s specific findings and recommendations as set out in the report 
be prepared. They also agreed that the Committee’s recommendations be kept 
under review, in order to determine whether the demand for services outside 
normal working hours had increased and a more formal Out of Hours Service 
should now be introduced. 
 
RESOLVED  
 
(1)  That Cabinet supported the recommendations of the Communities Scrutiny 

Committee as set out in the report.  
 
(2)  That a detailed response to the Committee’s specific findings and 

recommendations as set out in the report be prepared.  
 
REASONS FOR DECISION - To appraise Cabinet of the Scrutiny Committee’s 
review and to respond to its specific findings and recommendations. 
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED - No other options were 
considered. 
 

CAB/
27/2
2-23 

ICT  and Transformation Scrutiny Review 
 
Cabinet considered a report of Councillor S Clough, Chair of the Organisation 
Scrutiny Committee. This set out the findings and recommendations of the 
Committee into its Review of ICT and Transformation. It was explained that the 
Review had sought to understand what Council services were now available 
online, how the change to online services had been implemented and what 
measures had been taken to ensure that all service users could still access them.  
 
Cabinet considered the Committee’s findings and recommendations.  These 
included the creation of a dedicated and centralised budget for Digital 
Transformation, the introduction of ‘cloud based’ ICT systems, which many other 
local authorities now use, and setting up a single ‘sign-on’ system, in order to 
streamline and simplify access to online services. The Committee also asked that 
the potential use of the Council’s Mill Council Chamber as a ‘community hub’ 
venue should be explored. Cabinet felt that this was a good suggestion. However, 
Members recognised that the limited size of the Chamber might make it difficult to 
implement. 
 
Cabinet welcomed the Review and thanked the Committee for its valuable work 
Members supported the recommendations and agreed that a detailed response to 

Page 7



 

3 

the Committee’s specific findings and recommendations as set out in the report 
be prepared.   
 
RESOLVED  
 
(1)  That Cabinet supported the recommendations of the Organisation Scrutiny 

Committee as set out in the report.  
 
(2)  That a detailed response to the Committee’s specific findings and 

recommendations as set out in the report be prepared.  
 
REASONS FOR DECISION - To appraise Cabinet of the Scrutiny Committee’s 
review and to respond to its specific findings and recommendations. 
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED - No other options were 
considered. 
 

CAB/
28/2
2-23 

Funding to Voluntary and Community Organisations - Summary of 
Outcomes for 2021-22 
 
The report to Cabinet provided an overview of the outcomes achieved by 
Voluntary and Community Sector infrastructure support organisations funded by 
the Council during the 2021-22 financial year. Members were asked to note the 
information. 
 
Cabinet discussed the report. Members were reminded how this support had 
contributed towards achieving the Council Plan Target to assist over 20,000 
vulnerable and disadvantaged households each year. They also heard how over 
the last three years more than £540,000 had been invested and over 90,000 
households in the District had been assisted. Members welcomed this. They also 
emphasised their commitment to vulnerable and disadvantaged households as 
part of their Council Plan aims and objectives. In particular, Cabinet stressed its 
aim to help those most affected by the cost of living financial pressures facing 
local communities.   
 
RESOLVED - That Cabinet noted the content of the report.  
 
REASONS FOR DECISION - To ensure that the Council maximises efficiencies 
and outcomes through commissioning voluntary sector organisations to help 
achieve the Council’s Priorities.  
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED - No alternative options are 
considered appropriate as the aim of the aforementioned review was to increase 
transparency and accountability of commissioned services. 
 

CAB/
29/2
2-23 

Risk Management Strategy 2022 
 
The report to Council sought approval of the revised Risk Management Strategy 
and Action Plan for 2022. Members were reminded how following a 
comprehensive review of the Council’s Risk Management Framework the Risk 
Management Strategy had been approved in 2020. This Strategy, it was 
explained, set out the mechanisms and processes for developing Risk 

Page 8



 

4 

Management within the Council and ensuring that this was then carried out in a 
systematic way.  
 
Cabinet heard about the changes to the Strategy and Action Plan. Members 
were informed that these would help demonstrate the Council’s response to the 
changing risk environment and provide more information about how the Council 
assesses its ‘Risk Appetite’, or when it would be prudent to take appropriate risks 
in order to achieve specific goals. The changes to the Action Plan, it was 
stressed, would also reflect the requirements for continual improvements which 
had been identified. 
 
Members discussed the report. Cabinet welcomed the good progress which had 
been made in developing a robust strategic approach to risk Management since 
2020. In this context, Cabinet reflected on the important role played by the 
Member-led Risk Management Group’, Chaired by Councillor P Parkin, Portfolio 
Holder for Finance, in promoting and overseeing risk management throughout the 
Council.  

  
RESOLVED - That Cabinet approved the new/reviewed Risk Management 
Strategy and Action Plan. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION - The Council is committed to maintaining, 
developing and actively monitoring the operation of a formal and systemic 
approach to Risk Management. The key objectives of this Strategy meet that 
commitment. 
 
OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED - Under relevant good 
practice and to facilitate the development of robust managerial arrangements the 
Council is required to have in place a robust risk management framework - the 
alternative of not providing this is therefore rejected. 
 

CAB/
30/2
2-23 

Urgent Items 
 
None.  
 

Page 9



North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Cabinet 
 

24 November 2022 
 

Proposed Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes for 2022/23 
 

Report of the Scrutiny Chairs  
 
Classification: This report is public  
 
Report By: The Overview and Scrutiny Chairs: 
  Cllr M E Thacker MBE JP – Audit & Corporate Governance Scrutiny 
  Cllr K Tait – Communities Scrutiny 
  Cllr S Clough – Organisation Scrutiny 
  Cllr B Strafford Stephenson – Growth Scrutiny   
 
Contact Officer: Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny Officer (01246 217011)  
 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
To inform Cabinet of the future work programmes for the Council’s Scrutiny 
Committees, 2022/23. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
1.   That Cabinet support the attached Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 

for 2022/23. 
 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☐  No ☐  

Details: 
 

None at this stage. 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☐  

Details: 
 

None at this stage. 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☐   

Details: 
 

None at this stage. 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet ☐ 

SMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☒   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
Details: 
Scrutiny Members 
 
 

Links to Council Plan priorities, including Climate Change, Equalities, and 
Economics and Health implications. 

  

 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background (reasons for bringing the report) 
 
1.1 To build on the successful scrutiny previously undertaken at North East 

Derbyshire and respond proactively to external reviews and new legislation, a 
Scrutiny Development Plan was developed. The Plan was endorsed and 
supported by Cabinet on 5 December 2007 and the Overview and Scrutiny 
(O&S) Board on 21 December 2007.  

 
1.2 As part of the Development Plan, the need to develop an annual work 

programme for Overview and Scrutiny was identified. A process for developing 
the Overview and Scrutiny work programme was agreed. This includes 
informing Cabinet of the proposed programme. 

Page 11



1.3 Statutory guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local Authorities released by 
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government in May 2019 
confirms that best practice remains in establishing a long term work programme 
to ensure effective scrutiny. 

 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 All of the Scrutiny Committees have considered their work programme for 

2022/23. The Monitoring Officer has been provided with a copy for 
consideration. A proposed work programme for each of the Committees is 
attached at Appendix 1. However, work programmes are live documents that 
may change during the year as issues arise.  

 
2.2 It is important that the work programme remains realistic and manageable. 

There needs to be capacity to respond to new issues and developments 
throughout the year. It is therefore suggested that each committee undertakes 
no more than one in depth piece of review work during the year. 

 
2.3 The Committees Scrutiny Reviews proposed for the year are: 
  

 Communities Scrutiny Committee – Leisure Provisions for Older Residents. 

 Growth Scrutiny Committee – Business Engagement. 

 Organisation Scrutiny Committee – Planning Enforcement. 
 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 Scrutiny is required by the Development Plan to keep Cabinet informed of its 

work programme and communicate their work to other members of the Council.  
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable. 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1(a) Proposed Work Programme, Audit and Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Committee 

1(b) Proposed Work Programme, Communities Scrutiny Committee 

1(c)  Proposed Work Programme, Growth Scrutiny Committee 

4 (d) Proposed Work Programme, Organisation Scrutiny Committee 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 
 
 

 

Page 12



Appendix 1(a) 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

28 September 2022 
 

Committee Work Programme 2022/2023 
 

Report of the Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  
 

Classification: This report is public  
 
Report By:  Tom Scott – Governance and Scrutiny Officer 
 
Contact Officer:      Tom Scott thomas.scott@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 01246 217045 

 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
To enable the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to review the 
Work Programme for the remainder of the municipal year 2022/2023. 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

1. That the Committee notes and approves the Audit and Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Work Programme for the remainder of the 2022/2023 municipal year 
as set out in the attached Appendix 1. 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☒  No ☐  

Details: 
 

Risk - the development of a Work Programme for the Audit and Corporate 

Governance Scrutiny Committee will provide an appropriate structure to assist and 

support the Committee’s work.  This will help to ensure that the Committee continues 

to operate effectively and that the Council’s governance/scrutiny and accountability 

arrangements remain robust. The Programme is designed to allow the Audit and 

Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to continue its flexible approach to its 

and consider work the range of matters which are within its remit. There are no 

financial issues arising from the report. 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

Page 13

mailto:thomas.scott@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk


Appendix 1(a) 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☒  

Details: 
 

There are no legal issues or Data Protection matters arising directly from this report. 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
 

There are no staffing issues arising from the report. 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

 

 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet  ☐ 

SAMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☒   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
Details: 
Members of the Audit and 
Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Links to Council Ambition (NED) priorities or Policy Framework including 
Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health implications. 

None.  

 
 

Page 14



Appendix 1(a) 

REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background  
 
1.1 The Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee considers a range of 

financial and governance issues on a regular basis.  Given the number of 
matters that are examined by the Committee it is appropriate that an Annual 
Work Programme continues to be in place.  

 
1.2 The Work Programme is set out in the attached Appendix 1. It should be 

recognised that the work plan is a live document to which matters may be added 
or removed as appropriate and approved by the Committee, including standing 
items.  

 
1.3 The Work Programme enables Members to give structured consideration as to 

whether the proposed agenda items are appropriate and serve to meet the 
objectives of the Committee.  That question needs to be considered in the light 
of the Council’s Constitution, Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Guidance on the role of an Audit Committee and 
established good practice. 

 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 To enable the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to review 

the Work Programme for the remainder of the municipal year 2022/23. 
 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 To enable the Committee to consider the Work Programme for the remainder 

of the 2022/23 municipal year. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no other options proposed. 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 

Committee Work Programme 2022/23 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) you must provide copies of the 
background papers) 
Click here to enter text. 

 
 

 
 
  

Page 15



Appendix 1(a) 

Appendix 1 

AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: PROPOSED 

WORK PROGRAMME  

DATE OF MEETING ITEM 

29 June 2022  Car Parking on Council owned housing estates 

 Internal Audit Annual Report 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 

 CIPFA – Internal Audit Untapped Potential (for 
information) 

 External Audit Strategy Memorandum 

 Risk Management update 

 Medium Term Financial Plan – Outturn 

 Review of Work Programme 
 

27 July 2022  S106 Update 

 External Audit Strategy Memorandum  

 Performance Management  

 Corporate Debt  

 Financial Monitoring  
 

28 September 2022  

 Internal Audit Progress Update 

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
Recommendations 

 Review of the Internal Audit Charter 

 Annual Governance Statement and Code of Corporate 
Governance 2020/21 

 Car Parking on Council owned housing estates 

 Review of Work Programme 
 

09 November 2022 

 

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Performance Management  

 Risk Management 

 Corporate Debt  

 Financial Monitoring 

 Annual Statement of Accounts and Going Concern 
Report 2020-21 

 Audit Completion Report 2020/21 

 Letter of Representation 2020/21 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Review of Work Programme 
 

18 January 2023  Medium Term Financial Plan 2022/23 - 2025/26 

 Treasury Management Strategies 2022/23 – 2025/26 

Page 16



Appendix 1(a) 

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Review of Work Programme 
 
 

15 February 2023  

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
Recommendations  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Performance Management  

 Financial Monitoring  

 Corporate Debt 

 Proposed Accounting Policies 2022/23 

 Review of Work Programme  

 Risk Management  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Evaluate the Effectiveness of the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee  
 

10 May 2023  Annual Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit  

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Report of the External Auditor – Audit Plan 2022/23 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update 

 Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 

 Work Programme 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 17



Appendix 1(b) 

 

 
COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

FRIDAY at 1:30 pm 
 

Chair: Cllr K Tait       Vice Chair: Cllr H Liggett 
 

MEETING DATE AGENDA ITEM SCRUTINY 
ACTIVITY 

WHAT IT WILL COVER  UPDATE/COMMENTS 

22 July 2022 CCTV in Taxis Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive an update on the 
implementation of the CCTV in Taxis 
Policy. 

Ken Eastwood – Assistant 
Director of Environmental Health 
Accepted 

 Climate Change 
Strategy 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive an update on the Council’s 
Climate Change Strategy 

Steve Lee – Assistant Director – 
Transformation & Communication 
Accepted  

Remit of the Committee   Briefing on Scrutiny : 
 
- setting the scene  
- the terms of reference for the 

Committee 
       -    How the Committee operates, ways 

of working– Discussion 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer/Committee Members 
 

 Selection of Scrutiny 
Review Topic 

Review  To consider the Committees topic for a 
Scrutiny review 

 

 Consider what we want to look at 
 

 Consider stakeholders who we want to 
see 

Committee Members  

P
age 18



Appendix 1(b) 

 

 Draft Work Programme   To discuss items for  the draft work 
programme for the year and any 
suggested  items for inclusion 

Committee Members/ Damon 
Stanton – Senior Scrutiny Officer 
 

 Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

23 September 2022 
(10am) 

CCTV in Taxis Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive a final report prior to the 
implementation of the CCTV in Taxis 
Policy. 

Ken Eastwood – Assistant 
Director of Environmental Health 

 
Scrutiny Review 
2022/23 

Review  Scoping and  Scene setting for the 
2022/23 Scrutiny Review – Leisure and 
wellbeing provisions for older residents 

 

Chris Mills – Assistant Director of 
Lesiure 

 Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions 

Monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

 Scrutiny Work 
Programme 

Monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the Committees’ work 
programme 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

11 November 2022 CCTV in Taxis Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive a progress report on the 
implementation of the CCTV in Taxis 
Policy. 

Ken Eastwood – Assistant 
Director of Environmental Health 
 
Lisa Ingram – Legal Team 
Manager 

 Safer Streets Fund Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive an overview of the ‘safer 
streets fund’ bid and its initiatives 

Faye Green – Community Safety 
Manager 

 Previous Scrutiny 
Review 

Review  To consider progress against the Action 
Plan – Scrutiny Review into Residential 
Parking 

Damien Johnson – Assistant 
Director of Property, Estates & 
Assets invited 

P
age 19



Appendix 1(b) 

 

 
Scrutiny Review Review  Approval of Project Plan and Timetable 

 Consideration of any Documentation 

 Membership prices and structure 

 Membership numbers by age category 

 Activities list and venues 

Committee 

 Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions  

Monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

 Scrutiny Work 
Programme 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the Committees’ work 
programme 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

13 January 2023 CCTV in Taxis Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive a progress report on the 
implementation of the CCTV in Taxis 
Policy. 

Ken Eastwood – Assistant 
Director of Environmental Health 

 
Scrutiny Review – 
Leisure & Wellbeing 
Provisions for Older 
Residents 

Review Interviews 

 Stephen Birds – Swimming Development 
Officer 

 Michael Price – Healthy Lifestyles Manager 

 

 Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions 

Monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

 Scrutiny Work 
Programme 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the Committees’ work 
programme 

 Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 
 

THURSDAY 
09 FEBRUARY 
(INFORMAL) 

Obesity in Younger 
Residents 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider a report outlining Derbyshire 
County Council statistics for childhood 
obesity. 

Kelly Massey - Health & 
Wellbeing Development Officer 
 
Chris Mills – Assistant Director – 
Leisure  

 Scrutiny Review – 
Leisure & Wellbeing 

Review Interview 
Kelly Massey – Health & Wellbeing 
Development Officer 

 

P
age 20



Appendix 1(b) 

 

Provisions for Older 
Residents 

03 March 2023 Health Partnership 
Working 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider progress on the Healthy North 
East Derbyshire Approach 

 

Tris Burdett – Partnership Officer 
Accepted 

 CCTV in Taxis Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive a progress report on the 
implementation of the CCTV in Taxis 
Policy. 

Ken Eastwood – Assistant 
Director of Environmental Health 

 Scrutiny Review Review Interviews 
TBC 

 

 Scrutiny Review Review  Triangulation of evidence – Scrutiny 
Review 

Committee Members 

 Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

 Scrutiny Work 
Programme 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider whether the Committees’ work 
programme has been completed at year 
end 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

19 May 2023 CCTV in Taxis Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive a progress report on the 
implementation of the CCTV in Taxis 
Policy. 

Ken Eastwood – Assistant 
Director of Environmental Health 

 
Community Safety 
Partnership 

Monitor and 
challenge 
 

 To review the work of the Partnership Faye Green - Community 
Partnership Manager 
Invited 

 Previous Review Review  To consider the lead officer response – 
previous review on an out of hours service 

Lee Hickin – Managing Director 
 
Ken Eastwood – Assistant 
Director of Environmental Health 

P
age 21



Appendix 1(b) 

 

 Street scene monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the services performance 
including recycling 

 

HOS - Street scene 
 

 Draft Scrutiny Review 
report 

Review  To agree the draft report for  Scrutiny 
Review 

 

Committee Members 

 Monitoring of O&S 
recommendations  

Monitor  To monitor the implementation of previous 
committee and review recommendations 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

 Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions  

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge  
 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions 

 
 

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

 Scrutiny Work 
Programme 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge  

 To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Damon Stanton – Senior Scrutiny 
Officer 

 
 

P
age 22



Appendix 1(c) 

 

 

GROWTH SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 
MONDAY AT 1:00 PM 

CHAIR: Cllr B Strafford-Stephenson   VICE CHAIR: Cllr A Platts 
 

MEETING DATE AGENDA ITEM SCRUTINY 
ACTIVITY 
 

WHAT IT WILL COVER  UPDATE/COMMENTS 

14 July 2022 

 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive an update on progress made with 
the Investment Plan that is due to be 
submitted as part of the UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund. 

Karl Apps – Assistant 
Director – Economic Devp, 
Regeneration, and Housing 
Delivery 

Steve Lee – Assistant 
Director – Transformation & 
Communications Accepted  

Remit of the Committee   Briefing on Scrutiny: 
- Scene setting  
- The terms of reference for the Committee 
- How the Committee operates, ways of 

working – Discussion 

Committee Members /    
Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

 

 Selection of Scrutiny Review 
Topic 

Review  To agree the topic for the Committee’s 
Scrutiny Review. 

Committee Members 

P
age 23



Appendix 1(c) 

 

 Draft Work Programme  Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider items for the draft work 
programme for the year and any suggested 
items for inclusion 

Committee Members/ 
Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

 Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

 

19 September 
2022 (Informal) 
CANCELLED 

 
 

 
  

31 October 2022 Clay Cross Town Deal and 
Levelling up Fund 

Monitor and 
Challenge 

 To receive an update on the Clay Cross Town 
Deal and the Levelling up Fund. 

Karl Apps – Assistant 
Director, Economic 
Development Accepted 

 Business Sector Analysis Monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider a Business Sector Analysis of the 
District. 

Bryan Harrison – Senior 
Regeneration Officer & 
Urban Designer Accepted 

 Scrutiny Review – Business 
Engagement 

Review  Approval of revised project plan & timetable; 

 Case Study: O’Connor & Co 

 Business Advisor update 

Committee 

 Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 
 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

 Scrutiny Work Programme 
 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the Committees’ work programme Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

16 January 2023 Scrutiny Review – Business 
Engagement  

Review Interviews 

 Matt Finn – Environmental Health Manager 

 Local business 

 

P
age 24



Appendix 1(c) 

 

 Andrew Gascoigne – Revenues & Benefits 
Manager 

 Scrutiny Review Review  Triangulation of evidence Committee 

 Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 
 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

 Scrutiny Work Programme  Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge  

 To consider the Committee’s Work 

Programme 

Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

13 March 2023 Previous Review Review 
 To consider progress against the Action Plan 

– Tourism – Business and non-Business 

Assistant Director – 
Economic Development 
 
Kirstin Sykes – Tourism 
Officer  

Growth Strategy Monitor and 
challenge 

 To discuss progress on implementation of the 

Growth Strategy 

Director 
Portfolio Holder 

 Scrutiny Review Review 
 
 

 To finalise the Scrutiny Review Report Committee 

 Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge  

 To consider the  Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

 Scrutiny Work Programme 
  

Consultee, 
monitor and  

 To consider the Committee’s Work 

Programme  

Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

P
age 25



Appendix 1(c) 

 

08 May 2023 Clay Cross Town Deal and 
Masterplan for Eckington 
and Killamarsh 

Monitor and 
challenge 

 To receive a presentation on the Clay Cross 
Town Deal and the Masterplan for Eckington 
and Killamarsh 

Head of Economic 
Development and Housing 

 Monitoring of O&S 
recommendations  

Monitor  To monitor the implementation of previous 
committee and review recommendations 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

 Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

 

Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions 

Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

 Scrutiny Work Programme Consultee, 
monitor and 
challenge 

 To consider whether the Committees’ work 
programme has been completed at year end 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior 
Scrutiny Officer 

 

P
age 26



 

 

 Appendix 1(d) ORGANISATION WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

                                                        TUESDAY AT 10:00 AM 

  

CHAIR: Cllr S Clough      VICE CHAIR: Cllr M Emmens 

 

 

MEETING 

DATE 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

SCRUTINY 

ACTIVITY 

 

 

WHAT IT WILL COVER  

 

UPDATE/COMMENTS 

19 July 2022 Remit of the Committee   Briefing on Scrutiny: 

- Setting the scene 

- The terms of reference of the 

Committee 

- How the Committee operates, ways 

of working - Discussion 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer/          

Committee Members 

 Selection of Scrutiny 

Review Topic 

Review  To consider suggestions for review 

and select a topic for the Scrutiny 

Review 

 Consider what we want to look at 

 Consider stakeholders who we want to 

see 

Committee members 

 Review Report Review  To agree the Scrutiny Review Report Committee 

P
age 27



 

 

– ICT & Transformation Senior Scrutiny Officer 

 Draft Work Programme Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge 

 To consider the draft work programme 

for the year and any suggested items 

for inclusion 

Committee Members/  

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

 List of key decisions Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of 

Executive Decisions 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

06 September 

2022 (at 3pm) 

Annual Report of 

Human Resources and 

Organisational 

Development 

 

Monitor and 

challenge 

 Organisational Development 

 Apprentices 

 Question and Answer Session 

Human Resources 

Manager 

Accepted 

 Scrutiny Review 

2022/23 

Review  Scoping of Review including scene 

setting – Planning Enforcement 

Richard Purcell – 

Assistant Director of 

Planning 

 

Ken Eastwood – 

Assistant Director of 

Environmental Health 

 

Cllr Charlotte Cupit – 

Deputy Leader & 

Portfolio Holder for P
age 28



 

 

Environmental Services 

 List of key decisions Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of 

Executive Decisions 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

 Scrutiny Work 

Programme 

Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge 

 To consider the Committees’ work 

programme 

 

 

 

  Damon Stanton – 

Senior Scrutiny Officer 

15 November 

2022 

Working from home Monitor and 

challenge 
 To receive an update on the Council’s 

agile working policy and plans for Mill 

Lane. 

Sarah Sternberg 

Sara Gordon 

Matt Broughton 

Lee Hickin  Accepted 

 Staff vacancies Monitor and 

challenge 
 To discuss staff turnover and vacancy 

rates at the Council 

Sarah Sternberg 

Sara Gordon 

Matt Broughton 

Lee Hickin  Accepted 

 Scrutiny Review Review  To receive a report outlining Planning 

Enforcement procedures and multi-

agency working 

Richard Purcell – 

Assistant Director of 

Planning 

Ken Eastwood – 

Assistant Director of 

Environmental Health 

 List of key decisions Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of 

Executive Decisions 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer P
age 29



 

 

 Scrutiny Work 

Programme 

Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge 

 To consider the Committees’ work 

programme 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

24 January 

2023 

Scrutiny Review Review  Approval of Project Plan 

 Approval of timetable for the review 

 Documentation: 

 

  Review  Interviews TBC  

 Transformation 

Programme update 

Monitor and 

challenge 
 To consider an update on the 

Transformation Programme 
Steve Lee – HOS 

 List of key decisions Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge 

 To consider the  Forward Plan of 

Executive Decisions 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

 Scrutiny Work 

Programme 

Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge 

 To consider the Committees’ work 

programme 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

14 March 2023 Scrutiny Review Review 
 Triangulation of evidence – Scrutiny 

Review 

Committee Members 

 Rykneld Homes Consultee 

and monitor 
 To receive an update on Rykneld 

Homes 

Lorraine Shaw – 

Managing Director 

Rykneld Homes Ltd 

P
age 30



 

 

 Previous Review Review 
 To consider progress against the 

action plan – working from home 

during the pandemic. 

Sara Gordon – HR & OD 

Manager 

 List of Key Decisions Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge  

 To consider the  Forward Plan of 

Executive Decisions 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

 Scrutiny Work 

Programme 

Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge  

 To consider the Committee’s Work 

Programme  

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

16 May 2023 Draft Scrutiny Review 

report 

Review  To agree the draft report for  Scrutiny 

Review 
 

 Previous Review Review  To consider the lead office response – 

previous scrutiny review on ICT & 

Transformation 

Jayne Dethick – Director 

of Finance & Resources 

& S151 Officer 

Steve Lee – Assistant 

Director of 

Transformation & 

Communication 

 Monitoring of O&S 

recommendations  

Monitor  To monitor the implementation of 

previous committee and review 

recommendations 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

 List of key decisions Consultee,  To consider the  Forward Plan of Damon Stanton – Senior P
age 31



 

 

 
 

monitor and 

challenge 

Executive Decisions 

 

Scrutiny Officer 

 Scrutiny Work 

Programme 

Consultee, 

monitor and 

challenge 

 To consider whether the Committees’ 

work programme has been completed 

at year end 

 

Damon Stanton – Senior 

Scrutiny Officer 

P
age 32



 

 
 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Cabinet 
 

24 November 2022 
 

Tourism – Business and Non Business Scrutiny Review 
 

Report of Councillor J Kenyon, Portfolio Holder with Responsibility for Economy, 
Transformation and Climate 

 
Classification: This report is public  
 
Report By:  Kirstin Sykes - Tourism Officer 
 
Contact Officer: Kirstin Sykes – Tourism Officer 
 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
That Cabinet approve the action plan, attached as Appendix 2 to the report, from the Lead 
Officer. 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 That Cabinet approves the Action Plan attached at Appendix 2 to this report.    

 To carry out a review of the Service Level Agreement (SLA) with Marketing Peak 
District and Derbyshire (MPDD).  

 
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Councillor J Kenyon, Portfolio Holder with Responsibility 

for Economy, Transformation and Climate 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☐  No ☒  

Details: 

 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☒  

Details: 
 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet / Executive ☐ 

SMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
Details: 
Portfolio Holder. 
 

 

Links to Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy Framework including Climate 
Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health implications. 

 Supporting growth in the Visitor Economy 

 
 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background (reasons for bringing the report) 
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to detail the Lead Officer’s response to the findings of 

the Tourism – Business and Non Business Scrutiny Review presented to Cabinet on 
8th July 2021 

 
1.2 The lead officer’s response to the review is contained in the Action Plan (Appendix 2), 

which details proposals of how officers intend to address the recommendations made 
by the scrutiny panel, as set out at Appendix 1.  

 

Page 34



 

 
 

2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 The review aimed to:- 

 To review what the Councils overarching strategy for Tourism and Growth is 
and whether it is being achieved; 

 

 To understand the economic benefits which will accrue from growth relating to 
the Tourism Strategy; 

 

 To understand the Districts existing delivery arrangements for Tourism; 
 

 To consider whether the Council is getting value for money from current 
arrangements; 

 

 To understand the role of the District Council and its partners in promoting 
Tourism in  the District; 

 

 To understand how we can effectively support business in this area; 
 

 To identify how do we increase jobs and spending linked to Tourism; 
 

 To identify how are we measuring the contribution to the Council’s Growth 
agenda.                      

 
2.2 The recommendations following the review were:-  

 That the Council develop a clear brand for tourism within the District and 

identifies its key Tourism assets 

 That the Council consider how it can improve connectivity within the District to 

help the growth of tourism 

 That the Council considers how it can expand its offer to local businesses 

supporting Tourism 

 That the Council develop a plan for promoting the attractions within the 

District effectively including working in partnership with Parishes and other 

neighbouring partners 

 That the Council produce a set of Performance Indicators that measure the 

impact of Tourism within the District. 

2.3 A copy of the report produced by the Growth Scrutiny Committee is attached at 
Appendix 1.   

 
2.4 The SLA with MPDD concludes in March 2023 therefore it is timely and sensible to 

review the MPDD SLA. With the added resource allocated to Tourism as well as the 
visitor economy strategy in place it is appropriate to review existing arrangements.  

 

Page 35



 

 
 

3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 Cabinet is asked to confirm their support for the review recommendations.   
 
3.2 Cabinet is asked to agree the actions identified in the action plan attached at Appendix 

2. 
 
3.3 As part of the scrutiny review various officers, members and Porfolio Holder were 

consulted. 
 
3.4 The MPDD SLA is due to conclude soon and it is therefore appropriate to begin a 

review to ensure value for money as well as alignment to NEDDC strategic approach. 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 Overview and Scrutiny 

Tourism – Business and Non Business Scrutiny Review – Report 

 

2 Tourism – Business and Non Business Scrutiny Review - Action 
Plan 
 

  

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 
None 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 

 
 

Appendix 1  

 

NORTH EAST DERBYSHIRE 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

 

TOURISM  

 

 BUSINESS AND NON BUSINESS 

 

 

APRIL 2021 

 

 

Page 37



 

 
 

 

Contents 

                   Page 

 

 Chair’s Foreword 1 

1 Recommendations 2 

2 Introduction 2 

3 Scope of Review  2-3 

4 Method of Review 3 

5 Evidence and Research 3 

6 Key Findings 3-6 

7 Conclusions 6  

 Appendix 1 – Stakeholders Engaged during the Review 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

Page 38



 

 
 

Chair’s Foreword  

I am delighted to present this report describing the work of The Growth Scrutiny 
Committee. It includes a wide range of information about the work elected 
Members have undertaken over the past year. 
 
Scrutiny continues to play a vital role by holding decision makers to account; 
developing and reviewing policy; as well as considering how the Council is 
delivering on its commitments to the residents of North East Derbyshire. 
 
Over the past year The Growth Scrutiny Committee have welcomed the 
opportunity to work closely with the Cabinet and Senior Officers as they lead the 
Council. The Committee has sought to concentrate on scrutinising tourism in the 
district both in business and non-business to provide constructive input in finding 
ways to improve clarity, growth, monitoring, development of existing policies and 
support to the Council to produce positive outcomes for residents. 
 
I would like to thank my Vice Chair Michelle Emmens and the committee members 
as they brought energy and enthusiasm to their involvement. They have provided 
constructive challenges and recommendations for the Cabinet, Executive 
Directors and Partners. 
 
I would like to make a special mention of Sue Veerman, Overview and Scrutiny 
Manager who throughout the year has been there for me as Chair and the 
Committee when we needed support and sometimes inspiration. 
 
I wish success to the Growth Scrutiny Committee for the next year to help ensure 
continued improved outcomes for residents and businesses within North East 
Derbyshire. 
 
Cllr Anthony Hutchinson 
Chair of the Growth Scrutiny Committee  

Page 39



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 

       Review Panel 
       The review panel comprised the following members: 
 
       Councillor A Hutchinson      -   (Conservative) – Review Panel Chair 
 
       Councillor N Barker          -    (Labour) 
       Councillor S Cornwell        -   (Labour)  
       Councillor M Emmens       -    (Conservative) 
       Councillor J Funnell          -    (Independent) 
       Councillor L Hartshorne    -   (Labour)  
       Councillor M Roe              -      (Conservative) 
       Councillor D Ruff               -    (Conservative) 
       Councillor N Whitehead    -      (Conservative) 
                          

1. Recommendations   
 
 That:   
 
1.1 The Council develop a clear brand for Tourism within the District and identifies 

its key Tourism assets. 
 
1.2 The Council consider how it can improve connectivity within the District to help 

the growth of tourism. 
     
1.3 The Council considers how it can expand its offer to local businesses 

supporting Tourism. 
 
1.4    The Council develop a plan for promoting the attractions within the District 

effectively including working in partnership with Parishes and other 
neighbouring partners. 

 
1.4 The Council produce a set of Performance Indicators that measure the  impact 

of Tourism within the District 
 
                                                     

2. Introduction   
 
2.1      At its meeting on 8th June, 2020 the Growth Scrutiny Committee agreed to 

undertake a review of Tourism – Business and Non Business. 
 
2.2      The review panel thought it timely to review this area because of the significant 

potential benefits it could provide economically to the District 
 
                                                                                                                                                            

3. Scope of Review       
 
3.1    The review aimed to: 

Page 40



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 

 To review what the Councils overarching strategy for Tourism and 
Growth is and whether it is being achieved 

 

 To understand the economic benefits which will accrue from growth 
relating to the Tourism Strategy 

 

 To understand the Districts existing delivery arrangements for Tourism 
 

 To consider whether the Council is getting value for money from current 
arrangements 

 

 To understand the role of the District Council and its partners in 
promoting Tourism in  the District 

 

 To understand how we can effectively support business in this area 
 

 To identify how do we increase jobs and spending linked to Tourism 
 

 To identify how are we measuring the contribution to the Council’s 
Growth agenda.                      

 
 

4. Method of Review       
 
4.1     The review panel met on six occasions to consider the scope of the review, 

key issues they wanted to discuss and key people they wished to interview. 
 
4.2     Evidence was gathered in a variety of ways including written sources and   

interviews with a range of stakeholders. 
                                                            
 

5. Evidence and Research      
  

5.1  A number documents and evidence were provided to the review panel for 
consideration.  Details are provided below: 

 

 Scene Setting Presentation by the Director of Growth and  Economic 
Development on 6th July, 2020 

 

 Economy Visitor Strategy 
 

 Previous Tourism and Growth Scrutiny Review action plan 
 

 Presentation on the new Growth Strategy 
                                                     
 

6. Key Findings      
                                           

Page 41



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

6.1    Strengths/Observations 
 
6.1.1  The Director of Growth and Economic Development discussed the new draft 

Visitor Economy Strategy with the review panel.  The consensus of the panel 
was that the strategy was a good well set out document and recognised the 
hard work both the Portfolio holder and the officers had undertaken to produce 
the strategy.  The Portfolio holder for Economic Growth provided evidence to 
the Committee of the Council’s vision for Tourism in North East Derbyshire.   
It identified how the Council was aiming to encourage strong and sustainable 
growth within the Visitor Economy for the District.  The District was 
geographically well placed and attracted approximately three million visitors in 
2017.   It also generated 1,949 full time equivalent jobs accounting for the 
sector being worth £147 million in that year.  The Committee were advised 
that the Council was engaging in closer partnership work to grow the District’s 
tourism and visitor economy, such as partnerships with Marketing Peak 
District, Derbyshire Tourist Board, Derbyshire County Council and D2N2.  The 
strategy included a number of priorities such as creating a year round visitor 
economy in the District, developing the visitor offer, developing and promoting 
the cultural and natural heritage of the area and improving the skills of local 
businesses. 

 
6.1.2  The Committee were also advised that the Council was appointing a dedicated 

officer for tourism.  This had been raised at a previous Scrutiny review of 
Tourism and Growth and was supported by the current review panel as a 
positive move.  It was hoped this dedicated resource would help the Council 
to focus on driving tourism growth within the District. 

 
6.1.3  The Review Panel had considered the potential of the District as a Tourism 

area.  It was recognised that the District did not have major landmarks within 
its boundaries such as historic houses like Chatsworth or Hardwick Hall.  It 
was however, well positioned in that many of these attractions were nearby 
including the Peak District. There was also significant numbers of potential 
day visitors within easy reach of the District including Sheffield and 
Manchester.  It also had potential in its own right in that it was an attractive 
rural area with a number of interesting villages and towns, some of which held 
events such as annual well dressings that proved popular for visitors.  
Chesterfield canal runs through part of the District and it also has walking and 
cycling routes through its area and a number of public open spaces and 
country parks.  A number of walking festivals are usually held with yearly within 
the area. 

 
 The Review Panel also considered the newly emerging Growth Strategy that 

would be submitted to Cabinet in April 2021.  Both the visitor economy and 
business engagement and support were priority areas within the Strategy. 
Additionally the Council’s emerging Local Plan 2012-35 identifies how the 
planning system could help the sector to grow and provide a benefit to the 
local economy whilst respecting the rural and tranquil nature of the District.  
Benefits suggested included increase expenditure, significant employment 
opportunities if the development of the visitor economy was successful. 

 

Page 42



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

6.2     Areas for Improvement/Observations     
 
6.2.1    During the review the panel had concluded that one challenge was to establish 

a clear identify and brand for the visitor economy in the area.  There was a 
consensus that North East Derbyshire should be considered an attraction in 
its own right but faced challenges in regards to creating a uniqueness for the 
District. Additionally the potential difficulty in attracting visitors to the area 
whilst caution remains over the Pandemic was considered.   

 
6.2.2  The panel heard evidence of a study in Bolsover which had identified that their 

area should be based around what it offered, such as cycling routes and 
networks and not solely about geographic location, such as being located near 
to the Peak District.  The Panel felt this was a useful insight that was relevant 
to North East Derbyshire. They felt that we needed to undertake further work 
to develop our brand and create a strong identify that supports Tourism within 
the District.        

           
6.2.3  The review panel heard a number of comments made regarding gaps that 

existed in connectivity within the District.  This included a lack of public 
transport across the area that may make it difficult for visitors to access 
different locations within the District easily there was also a need to join up of 
various walking and cycling trails within the District and beyond. Following this 
discussion the lack of connectivity was identified as an area that needed to be 
improved. The Committee also highlighted the importance of ensuring that key 
attractions such as cycle routes remained funded, well maintained and 
accessible.  Members concluded that connectivity was vital for a vibrant and 
sustainable visitor economy. It was recognised that this was a complex area 
to progress and would need partnership working to maximise its effectiveness.  
It was suggested connectivity could be improved by working with other 
Councils including Parishes and Derbyshire County Council if possible.  It was 
felt that there was a need to have proactive conversations with partners if we 
were to move this issue forward.   

 
6.2.4  One interesting interview session was with the Bolsover Countryside 

Partnership Manager.   The Panel heard that the officer worked on a variety 
of projects involving sustainable tourism in the Bolsover area, with a view to 
support and enhance the environment, resident’s health and wellbeing, the 
local economy and carbon reduction and sustainable travel.  Projects included 
the ‘visit, sleep, cycle repeat initiative.   Funding had been secured to invest 
in the initiative area which included parts of North East Derbyshire, Bolsover, 
Chesterfield, Mansfield, Worksop and South Yorkshire.  The officer stated that 
it was important to promote our trails and cycling routes and connect with other 
trails but also understand they needed to be supported.  

 
            The Panel heard evidence that the District lacked infrastructure in country 

parks and around cycle routes.  Two examples provided by members of the 
panel were small vans serving coffee and food within a country park, which 
was providing a service that was thriving and encouraging people to be in the 
park. It was suggested that it would be beneficial to consider how we can 
support local business provide some of these facilities.  An example was also 

Page 43



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

given of the five pits trail where wardens need to be maintained to stop issues 
like fly tipping which detracted from the attractiveness of the area   

 
          In addition the Visitor Economy Strategy also identified that more support to 

businesses was needed.  It stated that the Council and its partners need to 
work with the businesses to help them growth, providing guidance and support 
and access to finance.  The review panel supported this aim    

 
 

6.2.5  One of the weaknesses identified in the Visitor Economy strategy was that the 
Council was not promoting the businesses and attractions the District had. 
Members agreed with this conclusion.  The Panel had considered the District’s 
attractions as part of its evidence gathering.  This was an area that the Council 
could improve by identifying the effective ways to advertise what the District 
had to offer.  The Council had its own website which could be developed 
further to ensure it made the relevant links to the attractions and facilities that 
North East Derbyshire had to offer.  As well as attracting visitors to the area, 
who might also stay within the Districts accommodation provision, there was 
also day visitors and local tourism.  Co-ordination of events with the parishes 
of the District could also be highlighted. 

 
        
6.2.6    The Committee had heard from the Joint Housing Strategy and Growth 

Manager that during the first lockdown as a result of the Pandemic the Council 
had launched a Tourism Business Engagement Project. The feedback from 
the Tourism Business Engagement Project would be used to further shape the 
Strategy so that businesses were confident that the Plan could assist them.  
Members were advised that key performance indicators would be included 
with the Visitor Economy Strategy and would be used to measure the 
effectiveness of the tourism function at NEDDC.  The Committee had 
discussed a number of KPI’s which could be used to determine the success 
of the plan including overnight visits, events and attractions. The Review Panel 
felt it was key that a set of meaningful performance indicators were identified. 

 
 

7. Conclusions           
 
7.1    The review panel heard views from a range of stakeholders during the review 

process.   The review identified a number of measures the Council was taking 
to support local businesses within the District and promote economic growth 
in support of tourism. 

 
7.2  However, some areas for improvement which would enhance the current 

provision were identified around establishing a clear brand for the area, better 
promotion of the districts tourism attractions and improved connectivity.  

 
 
 
  

Page 44



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 

APPENDIX  2 

Tourism – Business and Non Business Action Plan                                                       

 

Item 

 

Recommendation Action Required Who by When by Progress 

1.  That the Council 

develop a clear brand 

for tourism within the 

District and identifies its 

key Tourism assets 

 

 

The Council is part of 
the Marketing Peak 
District and Derbyshire 
(MPDD) which 
provides a brand for 
the Peak District and 
Derbyshire and 
associated tourism 
assets. The Council to 
strengthen our 
relationship with 
MPDD to utilise the 
branding provided. 
 
 
 
 
 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Council currently has an SLA in place 

with MPDD – April 2020 to March 2023. 

Regular meetings held with Jo Dilley 

MD and Rachel Briody (Marketing 

Manager) to reinforce NED events and 

attractions within their promotional 

activities. These have increased, 

although there are still a limited 

number of NED members.  

This needs to be addressed with 

MPDD. The current SLA with MPDD is 

due to come to an end in March 2023. 

Recommendation to review this with 

a view to creating robust outcomes 

appropriate to the agreed level of 

investment. 

Quarterly meetings also held with 

MPDD Tourism Officer Group.  

P
age 45



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

The Council to identify 
our key Tourism 
Assets. 
 
 
 
The Council to work 
closely with MPDD to 
develop our branding 
strategy and improving 
a year round visitor 
economy. 
 
 

Review branding with 

the Communications 

Team to ensure that all 

opportunities are 

maximised for the 

District.  

Tourism Officer 

 

 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

 

 

 

March 2024 

 

 

April 2022 – 

March 2024 

 

 

Key Tourism Assets identified – 

database created and regularly 

updated. Also establishing relationship 

with internal departments (Licencing, 

Comms and Leisure) to utilise our own 

assets. 

Tourism Officer now working closely 

with MPDD to increase NED presence 

in terms of Membership and 

Promotion. See above ref SLA with 

MPDD. 

 

Tourism Officer - Regular updates with 

Communications Team – monthly 

communications plan for the coming 

year created. Review of use of 

NEDDC website looking at ‘About the 

District’ section to cover 

tourism/health. Very positive in terms 

of working together to promote the 

Visitor Economy. Utilising MPDD for 

overall branding, ensuring NED is 

being promoted internally and via the 

MPDD website and socials. 

2.  That the Council 

consider how it can 

improve connectivity 

within the District to help 

the growth of tourism 

To work with DCC 

and other Key 

Partners to Develop 

Green infrastructure, 

such as Footpaths 

Regeneration 

Officers / 

Tourism Officer 

March 2024 

 

Regeneration Officers to be recruited. 
 
Tourism Officer attending Visit Sleep 
Cycle Repeat (VSCR) stakeholder 
meetings (DCC) – programme area 
covering North Derbyshire and North 
Nottinghamshire. Looking at 
opportunities to unify the area and 

P
age 46



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 and Cycleways in the 

District. 

 

The Council to 

provide lobbying and 

support for leisure 

facilities and activities 

such as Active 

Derbyshire. 

The Council to 

influence and 

continue to respond 

to DCC with regard to 

Highways and 

Planning issues. 

Love Exploring App 

launched successfully 

in Eckington and Clay 

Cross (events and 

walks/trails).  

To be further 

developed for 

Dronfield and 

Killamarsh. 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

create a shared identity. Green 
Triangle concept created to provide 
that identity and destination plan. 
Ongoing. 
 
Tourism Officer attending Stakeholder 
meetings for Walk (Active) Derbyshire 
– held quarterly. Items discussed:-   

 Netwalking 

 20 minute Neighbourhoods 
 

Actively building relationships with 
internal teams to discuss future 
opportunities. 

 

 

 

 

Launch complete and being used in:- 

 Clay Cross – primarily linked 
with Healthy Futures Events – 
7 games / 2 trails 

 Eckington – 2 games / 2 trails. 

 Dronfield – recently added – 
will go live with trails added by 
September 2022. Games to be 
added prior to October half 
term 2022. 

 Killamarsh – to be added. 
Recently promoted in The NEWS 
Summer Edition – and promoted with 

P
age 47



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

specific events through our Social 
Media. 

3.  That the Council 

considers how it can 

expand its offer to local 

businesses supporting 

Tourism 

 

Vision Derbyshire – 

collaborative working 

across the County. 

 

 

 

 

Skills Need analysis – 

a clear understanding 

of business needs in 

the District. 

Partnership working 

with MPDD –recovery 

plan. 

 

 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

 

 

 

Employment & 

Skills Officer / 

Tourism Officer 

 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

Started – March 

2024  

 

 

 

 

 

March 2022 

 

 

March 2024. 

 

 

 

Tourism Officer attending quarterly 

Vision Derbyshire Meetings with all 

partners. Regular meetings also held 

with Vision Derbyshire Project Officer 

and Business Start Up Advisor ref 

NED business start-ups enquiries & 

grants. Working closely with NEDDC 

Comms Team to promote the grants – 

Case Study in The NEWS summer 

edition and sharing grant information 

on Social Media and website. 

Skills audit report completed 

March 2022. Limited responses. 

 

Continue to work with MPDD, 

regularly attend meetings and 

networking & member events. 

Building membership and 

increasing NED presence on 

their website and social media. 

P
age 48



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 

Implementing action 

points from NEDDC 

Visitor Economy and 

Growth strategies 

 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

March 2024 

Signposting for ERDF business 

grants. 

 

Contacts made and connections 

developed with key partners. 

Ongoing implementation of VE 

and Growth Strategies. 

4.  That the Council 

develop a plan for 

promoting the 

attractions within the 

District effectively 

including working in 

partnership with 

Parishes and other 

neighbouring partners 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Council to create 
a baseline of existing 
attractions, NEDDC 
events, and activities. 
To work with key 
partners to develop 
and promote. 
To continue to work 

with strategic partners 

including Parish 

Councils to provide 

updated lists of 

attractions.  

To identify key 

stakeholders for 

campaigns to create 

a strong, collaborative 

plan together. To work 

closely with MPDD to 

Tourism Officer 

and 

Communication 

Team 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

 

 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

March 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2024 

 

 

Tourism Officer building connections 

with local partners, businesses and 

Parish Councils. Database created 

and regularly updated as connections 

made. Tabs include ‘Attractions’, 

‘Accommodation’, and ‘Events/other’.  

Information initially used for promotion 

in The NEWs – ’15 things to do for 

free…’ and ‘What’s On’. Will continue 

to utilise and build the database and 

connections. 

Encouraged NED VE businesses to 

connect with MPDD membership 

manager and Business grant scheme 

manager. 

Regularly meet with and pass 

information on to various 

representatives of MPDD. Keep up to 

date with MPDD website and social 

P
age 49



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

promote the area and 

ensure information is 

passed to MPDD to 

promote widely.  

To work closely with 
the Communications 
Team to 
develop/review the 
Visitor Economy 
section on the 
Council’s website 
including detailed 
information and links 
to tourist attractions. 
To develop a long term 
plan to promote key 
attractions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Tourism Officer 

and 

Communications 

Team 

 

 

 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

media to ensure NED content is 

available and improved. 

Tourism Officer recently added a 

number of events and activities to the 

MPDD website. Including ‘Brackenfield 

Heritage Trail’, The ‘Walking Together’ 

Memorial’, The ‘Five Pits Trail’, local 

Well Dressings, Carnivals and 

Community/ Heritage Events such as 

Dronfield Hall Barn. 

This information is also shared with 

NEDDC Communications Team for 

sharing on our own platforms. 

Tourism Officer regular meetings with 

Communications Team. Items 

discussed:- 

Regular editorial for The NEWs:- 

- VE items included in Summer 

edition as listed above.  

- Continue to include in future 

editions of The NEWS 

- Encourage advertising from 

local VE businesses 

- Continue to forward images 

and events/activities for 

promotion through social 

media and website. 

- Create new walking routes 

- Identifying VE assets for 

promotion 

P
age 50

NEWs:-


OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To steer our local 
businesses to utilise 
MPDD for their 
promotional and 
marketing needs. 
 
To support our local 
businesses to find 
alternative ways to 
promote their 
businesses and have 
an online presence. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To develop a 
marketing toolkit to 
support local 
businesses, 
signposting them 
towards relevant 
advice and resources. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

July 2022 

 

- Promote Love Exploring 

- Tourism/Leisure links. 

- Potential VE section on 

NEDDC website 

- Potential for creating a NED 

brand. 

Two local VE businesses directed to 

utilise & join MPDD – Matlock Farm 

Park and Dronfield Hall Barn. This has 

included signposting to relevant 

events/workshops and funding 

opportunities (Accessibility funding 

ERDF – Dronfield Hall Barn). Tourism 

Officer also ensuring their events are 

included within the MPDD What’s On 

and Events pages. Ongoing. 

Encouraging local businesses and 

attractions to work with us:- 

- Including events in our ‘What’s 

On’ guide 

- Placing paid advertisements in 

The NEWS 

 

Tool kit developed and Tourism 

Officers developing relationships with 

VE businesses – ongoing. 

 

P
age 51



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

  

5.  That the Council 

produce a set of 

Performance Indicators 

that measure the impact 

of Tourism within the 

District 

 

As a member of the 

MPDD, The Council 

will receive periodic 

information regarding 

the NED Visitor 

Economy. This will 

inform our impact, 

effectiveness, and 

future actions. 

Tourism Officer 

Responsibility of 

ADEDRHD 

March 2024 Performance Indicators 

produced as part of Tourism 

Officer KPI’s linked to the VE 

and Growth Strategy. Plus, 

regular meeting with MPDD to 

provide baseline information 

about the Visitor Economy. 

                                          

Legend  

ADEDRHD Assistant Director Economic Development, Regeneration and Housing Delivery 

 

 
      
 
 

 

P
age 52



North East Derbyshire Council 
 

Cabinet 
 

Council Plan Targets Performance Update July to September 2022 

 
24 November 2022 

 
Report of Councillor A Dale, Leader of the Council 

 
 

Classification: This report is public    
 
Report By: Kath Drury, Information, Engagement and Performance Manager 
 
Contact Officer: As above 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
To report the outturns for the Council Plan 2019-2023 targets as of 30/09/22. 
 
Out of the 77 targets: 
 
• 49 (64%) are on track 
• 1 (1%) target achieved this time, and 
• 27 (35%) achieved previously 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
1. That outturns against the Council Plan 2019-2023 targets be noted. 

 
Approved by: The Leader 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☐  No ☒  

Details: 
 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☒  

Details: 
 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet  

SMT ☒ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Details: 
Ward Members 
 

 

Links to Council Plan priorities, including Climate Change, Equalities, and 
Economics and Health implications. 

All  

 
 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background  
 
1.1 The attached appendix contains the performance outturn as of 30th September 

2022. 
 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 A summary by council plan aim is provided below: 
 
2.2 Our Economy - Creating a business friendly District that develops skills 

and jobs 
 

 15 targets in total 

Page 54



 10 targets are on track  
  5 targets have been achieved previously (ECO 04, 09,16, 20 and 21)  

 
2.3 Our Environment - Protecting and promoting the character of our District 

 15 targets in total  
 7 targets are on track  
 8 targets have been achieved previously (ENV 01,02,03,04,06,07,12 and 

19)  
 
2.4  Our Residents – Enhancing our residents’ quality of life  
 

 26 targets in total  
 22 targets are on track 
 4 targets have been achieved previously (RES 08,10,11 25) 

2.5 Our Services - Delivering high quality, cost effective services by engaging 
with residents, partners and Council staff 

 
 21 targets in total  
 10 targets are on track 
 1 target has achieved its intended outturn this quarter:  

o SER 06 - Provide self-service access to all service areas by 2023  
 10 targets achieved previously (SER 01, 07,08, 09,10, 16, 18, 23, 24 and 

26) 
 

2.6 Details have been provided in the appendix for those at exception and achieved 
together with a full council target listing. 

 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 This is an information report to keep Members informed of progress against the 

council plan targets noting achievements and any areas of concern. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable to this report as providing an overview of performance against 

agreed targets 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 Council Plan Targets Update – July to September 2022 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet you must provide copies of the background papers) 

All details on the PERFORM system 
 
 

 

Page 55



 

 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
Council Plan Targets Update – July to September 2022  

 

Status Key  
Target Status Usage  

 On Track The target is progressing well against the intended outcomes and intended date. 

 Achieved The target has been successfully completed within the target date. Success to be celebrated. 

 
Council plan target reported by exception 
 
Achieved 
 

SER 06 - Provide self-service access to all 
service areas by 2023 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Kenyon 
 

Achieved 

This target has now been achieved with self-service now 
embedded and business as usual for customer facing 
services. New service areas to self-service including 
Leisure and Finance and those service areas which had 
downloadable forms or web forms previously are now 
using Self-Service for customer facing 
services/applications.  

 

Full Council Plan Target Listing 
 
Aim: Our Economy - Creating a business friendly District that develops skills and jobs 
 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 

unless stated otherwise) 
Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

ECO 02 - Process all major planning 
applications 10% greater than the National 
Target per annum.   

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 

On track 

During quarter 2 (2022/2023) 10 major applications were 
determined with 9 determined within the statutory period. 
Target 70%. Actual 90% During the current (nationally 
measured) monitoring period for April 2021/March 2023, to 
date 53 major applications have been determined with 41 
determined within the statutory period.  

P
age 56



 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 

unless stated otherwise) 
Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

This represents 77% exceeding the 60% (national) target. 
The nationally set criteria have not been updated since Dec 
2020 and covered the period up to September 2021. It is 
therefore currently unclear how future performance will be 
measured. However, the performance will continue to be 
monitored in accordance with the existing criteria. 

ECO 03 - Process all non-major planning 
applications 10% greater than the National 
Target per annum. 

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 

On track 

During quarter 2 (2022/2023) 165 non-major applications 
were determined with 131 determined within the statutory 
period. This represents 79% and above the 70% nationally 
set target. During the current (nationally measured) 
monitoring April 2021/March 2023, to date 1158 non major 
applications have been determined with 929 determined 
within the statutory period. 
This represents 80.2% exceeding the 70% (national) target. 
The nationally set criteria have not been updated since Dec 
2020 and covered the period up to September 2021. It is 
therefore currently unclear how future performance will be 
measured. However, the performance will continue to be 
monitored in accordance with the existing criteria.  

ECO 07 - Deliver 3 engagement events 
annually to support business 

Growth and 
Assets 
Cllr Kenyon  
 

On Track  

Dronfield Jobs Fair took place in the Leisure Centre on 29th 
September, positive feedback received from stall holders 
and attendees. Four more events to be planned in 2023, 
dates and locations to be confirmed.  Start up in NED event 
being organised to take place in Jan 2023. 

ECO 13 - Hold 4 events annually to foster 
effective links with further and higher 
education establishments 

Growth and 
Assets 
Cllr Kenyon  
 

On Track  

Work continues with University of Derby and Chesterfield 
College on the Clay Cross Enterprise and Skills 
Hub.   University of Derby to attend Start up in NED event in 
Jan 2023 that is being organised 
 

ECO 15 - Deliver a bi-annual jobs fair to 
support jobs and skills  

 On Track  
The Dronfield Jobs Fair took place in the Leisure Centre 
with Jobcentre Plus on 29th September. 19 employers and 

P
age 57

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 

unless stated otherwise) 
Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

Growth and 
Assets 
Cllr Kenyon  
 

providers reserved tables at the event. Despite the low 
referrals again from Jobcentre Plus Work Coaches (only 16 
customers booked on to attend!) we had 90 residents 
attend, most had heard about the event via local social 
media, word of mouth and through promotion by the sports 
centre and NEDDC (special thanks to our Comms Team) 
 
There was very positive feed-back from both employers and 
residents about the event, with numerous applications made 
on the day, some job interview dates arranged, sign-ups for 
training courses and numerous enquiries about self-
employment and starting a business. 
 
The Holmewood Jobs Fair took place in the Cricket Pavilion 
in partnership with Jobcentre Plus on 13th July 2022. . 
 
17 employers and providers reserved tables (however 3 
dropped out the day before, but provided vacancies for the 
jobs board) those who attended had multiple vacancies in a 
variety of sectors offering full & part time work, 4 who 
attended had never been involved with Job Fairs before and 
conversations took place about how NEDDC and Jobcentre 
Plus could assist with their recruitment in the future. 
 
Training Providers were on hand to offer training 
opportunities Security/CCTV, FLT, HGV, Construction, 
Railway working, hospitality, Apprenticeships plus a variety 
of Sector Based Work Academies with guaranteed 
interviews. There was also a Jobs board displaying details 
of local vacancies. National Careers Service, Working 
Communities Project and Chesterfield College were 
available to offer careers advice. 

P
age 58

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 

unless stated otherwise) 
Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

It was unfortunate that the day was one of the hottest of the 
year and plus potential concerns about increased cases of 
Covid infections caused footfall to be low. In total only 27 
people attended but only 5 of those were JCP customers 
(frustratingly there were only 17 referrals made by Work 
Coaches to the event, they are not being proactive in 
promoting and referring customers to anything at the 
moment, they are still unable to mandate anyone). Once 
again posters, leaflets, schools notifying parents, Members, 
partner organisations and colleagues spreading the work 
and social media promoting on various platforms worked. 
On the day Jobcentre staff walked along the high street 
handing out flyers, but the high street was very quiet. It has 
been raised with Jobcentre staff need to do more to 
promote and refer for customers to future events. On a 
positive note a number of application forms were completed 
on the day. 

ECO 25 - Lead on reviews of Town Centres 
and larger settlements through Government 
funded programmes such as the One Public 
Estate, Town Deal and future opportunities  

Growth and 
Assets 
Cllr Cupit 

On track 

Eckington Masterplan is completed and the LUF bid has 
been submitted. Killamarsh masterplan is in progress and 
due to be completed soon. Clay Cross Town Deal - SRF 
has got to a final single option which is being progressed. 
This is going to the next board for endorsement. The 
business case will be developed based on this option.  

ECO 29 - Reduce the number of complaints 
in relation to town centre cleanliness   

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On track 

Zero complaints were received in this period (July - 
September) which is within the baseline (1 per month\ 4 per 
quarter) target established in 2020\21 period.  

ECO 31 - Implement and manage an annual 
programme of capital improvements to 
council owned business premises to attract 
and retain business clients (Measure by % 
completion of annual programme) 

Growth and 
Assets 
Cllr Renwick 
 

On track 

Spend up to 11/10/22 = £18,860.00  
Committed up to 11/10/22 = £85,777.54 (14.08%) 
cumulative 17.1% 
 
Mill Lane guttering replacement is underway and due for 

P
age 59

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A328%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A367%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A367%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A367%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A367%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A367%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A371%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A371%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 

unless stated otherwise) 
Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

completion November 2022. 
Porta cabin removal is Q3. 
Killamarsh Active - library demolition is due November 
2022. Car park works are partially complete (approx 75%) 
pending completion of demolition works. 
Roller shutter door replacement programme is ongoing. 
Dronfield Leisure Centre roof repairs are underway in 
conjunction with Decarbonisation project. 
  

ECO 32 - Increase revenue from business 
centre meeting bookings by 10% each year 
to maximise the use of these district 
facilities (Baseline: 2019/20) 

Growth and 
Assets  
Cllr Renwick 
 

On Track 

22/23 Q1 revenue income was £3,663. 
22/23 Q2 revenue income was £3,428 which totals £7,091. 
So based on a full year the total income would be £14,182 
which would be down from the previous year of £16,848. 
However, the projected income could increase over the 
remaining two quarters of the year. 

ECO 33 - Support at least 25 businesses 
each year through effective signposting and 
advice 

Growth and 
Assets 
Cllr Kenyon  
 

On Track 

This target has been exceeded by working with the 
dedicated business advisor at the D2N2 Growth Hub.  Over 
500 NED companies have been engaged since February 
2021. Target to run until March 2023. 

 
 
Aim: Our Environment - Protecting and promoting the character of our District 
 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 unless 

stated otherwise) 
Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

ENV 05 - Deliver 2 proactive planning 
enforcement exercises per year   

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On Track  

The Planning Enforcement team reported last quarter that 
it was is working on two proactive enforcement cases. This 
has since been increased to four cases to better reflect the 
work being carried out by the Team.  
 
The four main proactive cases being investigated include 

P
age 60

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A429%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A429%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A429%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A429%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A429%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A429%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

the unauthorised storage of scrap vehicles and metal, 
waste processing operations and other uses requiring a 
multi-agency approach with external agencies. There has 
been some positive progress in our investigations but the 
case is still ongoing. 
 
The second relates to large house builder developments 
which has cultivated in the Council taking enforcement 
action, which has been successful. However owing to the 
scale and complexities of the development, the case is still 
ongoing.  
 
The third relates to listed building breaches. Work is 
ongoing to compile a thorough assessment of the work 
requiring close work with the agent and developer. Work is 
ongoing and we expect progress on this in the next few 
months. The outcome may be prosecution and/or 
enforcement action for listed building offences.  
 
The fourth relates to unauthorised open storage uses in 
the open countryside involving close working with planning 
officers to deliver a scheme to enable the uses to be 
ceased.  
 
The performance target is still under review as the team is 
now accurately recording the number of cases that are 
'proactive'; these being cases that officers have identified 
through monitoring and/or being out and about in the 
District. 

ENV 09 - Develop and deliver 2 climate 
change community information events per year 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Kenyon 

On Track  

Climate Change Community Information content was part 
of the NEDDC Meet the Council events held in Shirland 
(27.04.22) and Barlow (16.05.22). Next Meet the Council 
event to be held at Killamarsh late Oct/early Nov.  

P
age 61

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A378%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A382%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

ENV 10 - Deliver 1 climate change training 
event for Parish Councils per year 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Kenyon 
 

On Track  
The annual training session will be scheduled for the 
March 2023 DPLG meeting (last session held 18.03.22). 

ENV 13 - Increase the number of fixed penalty 
notices issued for litter and dog fouling 
offences by 20% by 2023 (Baseline: 2019/20) 

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On Track  

October: Q2 target of 10 FPNs was exceeded with 16 
issued. 
Annual target 22/23 = 39 
Annual target 24/25 = 42 

ENV 14 - Undertake 15 litter picks and Love 
Where You Live initiatives per year   

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On Track  

October. Q2 Five patrols were carried out, against a target 
of 4. 
53% of the annual target already achieved 
Annual target 22/23 = 15 

ENV 16 - Measure %age of all reports of fly-
tipping referred for investigation to be 
responded to within 3 working days (set 
baseline in 19/20 for 20/21 onwards)   

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On Track  
All 36 were responded to within 3 working days, exceeding 
the target. 

ENV 17 - To deliver one high profile print and 
social media campaign per quarter on an 
Environmental Enforcement topic with the aim 
of influencing behavioural change 

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On Track  

This target has been reviewed to focus more on ensuring 
regular Environmental Enforcement media campaigns take 
place, aimed at influencing behavioural change. 
Discussions have taken place with Comms Team and 
plans are in place  to campaign for each quarter going 
forward 

Supporting information: 

Five litter patrols were carried out, against a target of 4. 
53% of the annual target (15)  already achieved 

All 36 fly tipping reports were responded to within 3 
working days, exceeding the target. 

16 FPNs issued against a target of 10. 

 

P
age 62

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A386%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A386%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A386%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A386%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A387%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A387%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A387%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A387%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Aim: Our Residents - Enhancing our residents' quality of life     
 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 unless 

stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

RES 01 - Whist maintaining high quality leisure 
facilities, reduce the annual subsidy of the 
leisure service year on year. 

Growth and Assets 
Cllr Powell  
 

On Track 

Participation has been good though Q2 with 
168,356 visits recorded. This is under the set target of 
186,250 quarterly visits but is expected due to 
seasonality. Eckington is fully operational following 
refurbishment works and Killamarsh opened 1st October 
(although no figures recorded). Works for 
decarbonisation scheme have started at Dronfield but 
not expected to impact on business. Sharley works 
expected to start from January 2023 but TBC. Outturn 
figures 2021/22 for the 3x Leisure facilities was £287,106 
subsidy which was excellent performance following 
COVID recovery. 
 
Reducing the subsidy will come under increasing 
pressure due to rising utilities costs and employee pay 
award.  

RES 02 - Run 12 community initiatives per 
year 

Growth and Assets 
Cllr Powell  
 

On Track 

Q2 Update 
Couch 2 5k at Sharley Park Leisure Centre 
Alice's View Buggy Push Walk at North Wingfield  
Love Exploring Event at Kenning Park 
Love Exploring event Sharley Park 
Kurling event at Sharley Park Leisure Centre 
First Art/Kenning Park Forest School Puppet Picnic 
Summer event 
Actual 6 initiatives 
Annual Target 12 initiatives  

RES 03 - Increase participation in leisure 
activities at leisure centres by 5000 visits per 
year   

Growth and Assets 
Cllr Powell  
 

On Track  
2022/23 Qtr. 2 - Participation has been good though Q2 
with 168,356 visits recorded. This is slightly under the set 
target of 186,250 quarterly visits but is expected due to 

P
age 63

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A162%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A312%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A313%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A313%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A313%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 unless 

stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

seasonality. We have just recorded the highest ever 
membership and swimming lesson figures. 

RES 04 - Deliver a health intervention for 258 
new attendees per year 

Growth and Assets 
Cllr Powell  
 

On Track  

Referrals into the programme have increased again in 
Q2. The team have performed excellently exceeding 
completer targets. With the team in transition and under 
staffed due to ongoing recruitment drives they have gone 
above and beyond to hit targets and show continuity of 
service. Excellent work! 
Target Q2 - 64 
Actual Q2 - 66 
Annual target - 258 
Annual actual - 124 
 

RES 05 - Deliver the PALS service to 40 
residents per year and report on the socio 
economic and health benefits 

Growth and Assets 
Cllr Powell  
 

On Track  

The scheme is now taking a whole system approach and 
has been successful in pulling together a partnership 
group that will look at improving the Health and 
Wellbeing of local residents. 
 
Quarter 2 successes have included: Partnership meeting 
with 30+ local partners across the network, working with 
local primary school to support CYP to remain more 
physically active through the 15K Moving on with Covid 
grant that has been secured. 
Delivery of a physical activity network across Clay Cross 
to support local residents to seek new and existing 
opportunities to be more activate 15 partners involved. 
Established a new Couch to 5K session to support 
families being more active together. 
Working with the local Forest School on a Green Social 
prescribing project for adults. 
First Art supporting with a residents group to support Arts 

P
age 64

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A313%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A313%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 unless 

stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

and Cultural opportunities through Arts Council Funding 
secured over three years. 
Annual New Age Kurling competition secured for Clay 
Cross in partnership with NE & Rykneld colleagues.  

RES 06 - Deliver the 10 week, 560 Lifestyle 
Programme to at least 12 schools across the 
District (10,000 students per year) 

Growth and Assets 
Cllr Powell  
 

On Track 
Delivery of the Five60 programme has commenced in a 
total of five schools to date with a further four schools on 
board in Q3  

RES 07 - Deliver additional lunch time or after 
school PE clubs in at least 6 schools per year. 

Growth and Assets 
Cllr Powell  
 

On Track 

We are currently delivering to 6 schools across the 
district  
 
The throughput of pupils attending these sessions in Q2 
981 
Q1 and Q2 data combined 1708 

RES 09 - Deliver the Corporate 
Communications Strategy Action Plan by 2023    

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Powell 

On track 

On target, progressing actions as planned. Utilising 
customer feedback from Citizens Panel survey 
conducted Nov 21 to inform content of the news, its look 
and how we engage with our residents. Service 
performance and actions being evaluated in line with 
feedback received to ensure we are using best practice 
methods, using our own content and limiting amount of 
promotional material and encouraging two way 
conversation and engagement. 
 
Advertising in the NEWS progressing, meeting with two 
companies (March 22) to discuss income to supplement 
the cost of the NEWS. 
 
Target on track, advertising now being explored via in 
house options and promotion due to no one applying for 
the tender externally, other items such as increasing 
social media content and gov delivery. 

P
age 65

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A317%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A318%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A318%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A318%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A319%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A319%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A319%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A319%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A319%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A319%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 unless 

stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

RES 12 - Improve the overall performance and 
usability of the website by achieving a 
minimum score of 90% using the Silktide* tool 
by Dec 2022. 

Finance and 
resources 
Cllr Powell 
 

On track 

Oct 22 
92 content 
90 accessibility 
98 marketing 
99 user experience 

RES 16 - Ensure home ownership models to 
equate to 25% of affordable homes 
requirement on new developments   

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Renwick 
 

On track 

The actual figure for affordable home ownership on 
affordable housing developments is collated at the end of 
March each year. However, the Council is continuing to 
work with a number of developers to encourage 
affordable home ownership on new build sites and it is 
anticipated that this target will be exceeded based on 
new and previous planning applications and 
conversations with developers this year. 
 
The Council has recently launched the Government's 
new 'First Homes' initiative, to help eligible residents to 
be purchase their first home at a discounted rate. This 
will also help to increase affordable home ownership.  

RES 18 - Reduce rough sleeping to zero by 
2023 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Renwick 
 

On track 

We recorded 0 persons rough sleeping through the 
course of Q1.  
In Quarter 2 we opened 62 cases (Full Homelessness 
Applications) 
42 prevention cases where people were threatened with 
homelessness 
20 relief cases where people were already homeless  
The National average for cases opened at prevention 
stage is 55%  
In Q2 the NEDDC average for cases opened at the 
prevention stage is 68%. This is compared to 32% of 
cases being opened at the relief stage. The prevention 
ratio has now recovered to pre pandemic levels where 

P
age 66

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A358%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A358%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A358%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A358%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A315%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 unless 

stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

the average prevention rate was 70%. People presenting 
who are already homeless is still higher than we would 
like. This means a greater demand for emergency 
accommodation.    
In Q2 we recorded 58 positive outcomes where 
homelessness or the threat of homelessness was 
resolved 
37 positive outcomes at prevention stage  
21 positive outcomes at relief stage 
The prevention and relief cases do not tell the whole 
story. In Q2 we also opened 89 advice cases. Advice 
cases are usually opened to register initial enquiries 
before a full homelessness application is made. These 
cases will either change to prevention or relief cases, or, 
they may only serve to capture more basic low level 
advice where there is no need to trigger a homelessness 
application. 

RES 20 - Create at least 4 apprenticeship 
opportunities by 2023 

Operations 
Cllr Foster 
 

 
On track 
 

One new apprentice has commenced and other 
apprenticeships are in the planning stages 

RES 21 - Invest in voluntary and community 
organisations to assist over 20,000 vulnerable 
and disadvantaged households per year 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Powell 
 

On track 

Subsequent CAG monitoring has shown 3,255 
beneficiaries to date, with further monitoring reports due 
to be received. The Eco School beneficiaries for 21/22 
have been confirmed 3758. This brings the current total 
of beneficiaries for 2021/22 to 20,050. Initial beneficiary 
figures for 2022/23 will be reported in Q3.  

RES 22 - Re-sign and launch the Armed 
Forces Covenant and deliver the action plan by 
2023 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Powell 
 

On track 

NEDDC's achievement of the Employer Recognition 
Scheme Gold Award was announced on 11th July 2022. 
Publicity This will be formally presented on 2nd 
November 2022.  Promotion and design support of has 
been given to the Armed Forces Community Hub to help 

P
age 67

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A304%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A304%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A304%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A304%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A304%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A304%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A306%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A306%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A306%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A306%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A306%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 unless 

stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

attract more attendees. Currently 104 residents are 
registered on the NEDDC AFC support database. 

RES 23 - Develop an Older People's Strategy 
by September 2020 and deliver the Action Plan 
by 2023    

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Powell 
 

On track 

Digital Connect project ongoing. During Q1 the number 
of beneficiaries totalled 33 through sessions delivered 
on-line, one to one and in a group settings. 100% 
customer satisfaction. Beneficiaries reported a quarter 
behind due to time lag with data.  

RES 24 - Develop the British Sign Language 
Action Plan by April 2020 for implementation in 
full by December 2023    

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Dale  
 

On track 

 Most of the action plan has been achieved now and is 
becoming embedded in our work and approach generally 
i.e. BSL service now included in the Council's Access for 
All statement and Event checklist. The Council is 
exploring resident interest for establishing an equality 
panel. Ideally some members of the deaf community may 
have an interest, 

RES 26 - Support at least 20 projects per year 
through the Community Action Grants Fund 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Powell 
 

On track 

Two grants were awarded totalling £800. In the year to 
date 13 projects have been awarded a cumulative total of 
£5,624.45. Regular promotion of successful projects 
through NEDDC social media is ongoing.   
 

RES 27 - Support at least 4 initiatives per year 
led by volunteers 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Kenyon 
 
 

On track 

The Public Health funded Community Development 
Worker role ended in 21/22 and will not be replaced. 
Future support will be subject to capacity and priorities 
within the Team. Publicity support was given to North 
Derbyshire Refugee Support Group to promote the 
sessions open to the Homes for Ukraine Scheme Guests 
and Sponsors. 

RES 28 - Recruit 8 physical activities 
champions per year  

Growth and Assets 
Cllr Alan Powell 
 

On Track 

We have recruited one champion that is supporting the 
new Buggy Push walk at Alice's View Children's Centre 
and has been trained as a volunteer walk leader. The 
further two champions have been recruited to support the 
Book Buddies session and will deliver the session 

P
age 68

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A306%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A306%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A307%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A307%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A307%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A307%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A307%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A309%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A309%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A309%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A309%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A309%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A309%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A309%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A311%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A311%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A311%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A311%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A347%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A347%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A347%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A347%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A347%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A347%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A347%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 unless 

stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

moving forward, we are working with them to get the 
group constituted which will allow the group greater 
sustainability and allow them to apply for additional 
funding opportunities to support moving forward.  
Actual to date 3 
Target 8  

RES 30 - Provide 10 waste, recycling and 
environmental advice to schools and 
community events per year 

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On Track 
Recycling promoter post currently vacant and under 
review. Investigate schools competition 

RES 31 - Support at least 6 school climate 
change projects per year  

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Kenyon 
 

 
On Track 

 Engagement with schools has noted that since their 
COVID hiatus this funding is no longer their priority. 
Consideration is being given to the inclusion of the Eco 
Schools grant as part of the Community Action Grant, 
with the separate Eco Schools budget to be refocused 
towards Cost of Living mitigation activity.  

RES 32 - Monitor performance against the 
corporate equality objectives and publish 
information annually 

 
Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Dale 
 

 
On Track 

Revised Access for All Events checklist issued to Service 
Managers together with a reminder for all published 
documents on the website to be accessible in 
accordance with the Accessibility Regulations. A light 
touch review also undertaken of the Hate Incidents 
Reporting form. Work also continues on the evaluation of 
the Council's equality objectives for 2021/22 in readiness 
for the scheme end in March 2023.  A couple of hate 
incidents reports have been supported by the team this 
quarter.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 69

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A337%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A159%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A159%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A336%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A336%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A336%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A336%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A336%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A336%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

Aim: Our Services - Delivering high quality, cost effective services by engaging with residents, partners and Council staff 
 

 Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 

unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

SER 02 - Deliver 4 employee liaison meetings 
annually 

Operations 
Cllr Foster 
 

On track The next meeting is scheduled for 20 October 2022 

SER 04 - Deliver 100 hours leadership training 
per year 

Operations 
Cllr Foster 
 

On track 
Further training has taken place including investigation, 
disciplinary, grievance and performance management 
training for Senior Management Team 

SER 05 - Ensure that at least 50% of 
transactions are made through digital channels 
by Dec 2024   

Finance and 
Resources 
 
Cllr Kenyon 
 

On track 

Q1 and annual totals are now available: 56.08% 
 
Baseline (Q1 2018-19 is 29.98%).   
 
Target has been achieved and has stayed consistently 
about the 50% target so the objective has been achieved. 
However, future work/consideration needs to be done on 
reducing direct contact with the contact centre, 
particularly via email as this involves a lot of manual 
processing and cost per transaction/queries likely to be 
higher than a phone call in many cases. Email 
communication could be better channelled through online 
forms. 
 
Monitoring of this figure should continue and work around 
promoting digital services also needs to continue. 
Consideration needs to be given to the cost and quality of 
each transaction type.  

SER 06 - Provide self-service access to all 
service areas by 2023 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Kenyon 
 

Achieved 

This target has now been achieved with self-service now 
embedded and business as usual for customer facing 
services. New service areas to self-service including 
Leisure and Finance and those service areas which had 
downloadable forms or web forms previously are now 

P
age 70

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE
http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A400%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

 Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 

unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

using Self-Service for customer facing 
services/applications 

SER 11 - Increase the number of pre-court and 
court enforcement actions taken by Community 
Safety 

Finance and 
Resources 
Cllr Renwick  

On track 

Quarter 2 
5 x CPW's 
1 x CPN 
0 x FPN 
 
1 x CBO still pending 
 
We are dealing with a lot of very low level neighbourhood 
disputes this quarter that do not require enforcement of 
this nature, as well as under 16's whom we cannot 
enforce through CPW/CPN 
 
ABC's are 5 live as of 6/10/2022 - these are in 
collaboration with the YET Team 
 

SER 12 - Ensure that monthly car parking 
patrols are undertaken outside schools within 
the District   

Cllr Cupit 
Operations 
 

On track The service has not yet been able to pick this back up. 

SER 15 - Deliver 6 Ward walks per year 
Operations 
Cllr Foster 

On track Discussions with Members still to take place 

SER 19 - Achieve a combined recycling and 
composting rate of 50% by March 2023 

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On track 

Q1 (2022/23) 5,249.84 tonnes of recyclable\compostable 
waste was diverted, yielding a recycling rate of 49.7% 
between April to June and when compared to Q1 
(2021/22) has seen a reduction of 2.9 %. 
 
Q2 (2022/23) Waste Data Flow information is estimated 
on like performance at ending Sept 2022, in particular as 
WDF information will not be available until ending Dec 
2022. It is estimated 5765 tonnes of recyclable\ 

P
age 71

http://biisapp.bolsover.gov.uk/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B00E3B14B-56BB-4EF2-BD06-85B65FA2A68D%7D%26object%3DO11%3A407%26type%3DOBJPAGE


 

 

 Council Plan Target (Target date 31/03/23 

unless stated otherwise) 

Directorate/ 
Portfolio Holder 

 Q2 2022/23 Progress Update 

compostable wastes will be diverted, yielding a combined 
estimated recycling rate of 50.5 % between July 2022 
and Sept 2022.  Q1 & Q2, periods yielding an estimated 
combined recycling rate of around 50.1 %. 

SER 20 - Place 2 recycling promotions in NEDi 
News annually   

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On track 

November edition to include "What we can recycle" and 
the Christmas dates. March Edition to include Unsung 
Hero’s focus on our mechanics, Easter comms recycling 
messages relating to Easter eggs.  To include an activity 
section for children relating to recycling services. Article 
on fly tipping to be linked with Env. Health. 

SER 21 - Undertake Local Environmental 
Quality Surveys to establish 96% relevant land 
surveyed meets grade B or higher cleanliness 
standards in line with Code of Practice for 
Litter and Refuse 

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On track 
LEQS's established 2.22 % of streets and relevant land 
surveyed fell below grade B cleanliness standards 
resulting in 97.78 % meeting the 96% target. 

SER 22 - Undertaking cleansing of all District 
estate roads at least 4 times per year 

Operations 
Cllr Cupit 
 

On track 
Urbanised housing estate street cleansing is scheduled 
on quarterly frequencies and performance is measured 
by way of operational cleansing program returns.  

 

 

P
age 72



1 
 

Agenda Item No  
 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Cabinet  
 

24 November 2022 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Revised Budget 2022/23 

 
Report of the Leader of the Council 

 
 Classification:  This report is public 
 

Report By:  Jayne Dethick, Director of Finance and Resources (S151 Officer) 
 

Contact Officer:  Jayne Dethick 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

To present revisions to the 2022/23 budget that was approved by Council in January 
2022 for Cabinet to consider. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. That Cabinet approve the use of the Resilience Reserve to fund the shortfall in budget 
 

2. That Cabinet approve any subsequent under spend on the General Fund in respect of 
2022/23 be transferred to the Resilience Reserve to “pay back” the contribution made 
this year and increase financial resilience for future years. 
 

3. That the following recommendations are made to Council: 
 
3a the budget in respect of the General Fund as set out in Appendix 1 of this report 

be approved as the Current Budget for 2022/23 
 
3b the budget in respect of the HRA as set out in Appendix 3 of this report be 

approved as the Current Budget for 2022/23 
 
3c The Capital Programme as set out in Appendix 4 of this report be approved as 

the Current Budget for 2022/23. 
 
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

   
 IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Finance and Risk         Yes   No  
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

 The issue of financial risk is covered throughout the report. In addition, it should be noted 
that not achieving a balanced budget is outlined as a key risk within the Council’s 
Strategic Risk Register. While officers are of the view that these risks are being 
appropriately managed it needs to be recognised that the continued budget pressures on 
the Council’s financial position need careful consideration when the Medium Term 
Financial Plan is refreshed in the coming months.  

  
 The capital programme identifies and recognises the need to maintain the Council’s 

assets in a fit for purpose state and to retain and attract income streams for the Council.  
The financing of the capital programme is secured for 2022/23 thus minimising the risk of 
any additional unplanned borrowing. 

 
 All financial implications are covered in the relevant sections throughout the report. 
 
  On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
  
 Legal including Data Protection      Yes  No  
 
 There are no legal issues arising directly from the report.  
 
 On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
 
 Staffing         Yes  No  
 
 There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 
 On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    
  
Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  
Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

Yes 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

Yes 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet ☐ 
SMT ☒ Relevant Service Manager ☒ 
Members ☒   Public ☐ Other ☐ 
 

Yes 
 
Details: Audit and Corporate 
Governance Scrutiny 
Committee 9 November 2022 

Page 74



3 
 

 

Links to Council Plan priorities, including Climate Change, Equalities, and 
Economics and Health implications. 
All 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 REPORT DETAILS 
 

1 General Fund Revenue Account 
 
1.1 The revised budget process is now complete and the proposed revisions for the General 

Fund are attached at Appendix 1.  The appendix shows the original budget for 2022/23 
which was approved by Council in January 2022 and the proposed revised budget for 
2022/23. Appendix 2 details the net cost of each cost centre by Directorate. 
 

1.2 Taking into account the additional growth and efficiencies identified, the revised budget 
has increased by £0.343m.  
 

1.3 Variances from the current budget are detailed in Table 1 and 2 below including variances 
in amounts transferred to and from grants and reserves. Some of the costs in the General 
Fund are funded by grants and reserves and some of the income in the General Fund 
needs to be moved to the grants and reserves to fund future expenditure commitments. 
Therefore these movements are necessary to show the “true” position of the General 
Fund.  

 
1.4 The main Net Cost of Services variances can be further analysed as: 
 

Table 1 
 
Net Cost of Services: 
 
 ‘£000 
Pay growth  816 
Vacancy savings (1,206) 
Agency staff 365 
Utility costs 448 
Vehicle fuel & oil 199 
Other hired services (150) 
Housing benefit  369 
Capital financing costs (89) 
Planning fees (104) 
Leisure centre income 121 
Commercial property rent (95) 
Miscellaneous variances  (14) 
Expenditure funded from grants and reserves 793 
Grant income moved to reserves (316) 
Total 1,137 

 
 
 
 

Page 75



4 
 

1.5 Reserves variances can be further analysed as: 
 
Table 2 
 
 ‘£000 
Transfers to Reserves:  
Revenue grants 315 
Other earmarked reserves 1 
Total 316 
Transfers from Reserves:  
Shortfall funded from Resilience reserve  (343) 
Revenue grants (454) 
Invest to save – leisure feasibility and design (64) 
Invest to save - other (215) 
Other earmarked reserves (60) 
Total (1,136) 
 
Net Reserves Total 

 
(820) 

 
 

1.6 Whilst the efficiencies identified through the budget process have been sufficient to 
cover much of the growth required they are not entirely sufficient to meet the 
additional costs required to fund the pay award and the increased costs of utilities 
and vehicle fuel which have increased by £1.463m above the budgeted amount.  This 
will be met from the Resilience Reserve this year, and savings identified during the 
remainder of this financial year will be used to “pay back” the monies to the reserve. 
This is not a sustainable solution for the medium term; this and other future budget 
pressures are being considered as part of the budget setting process and medium term 
financial plan refresh currently being undertaken.  

 
1.7 The final position will clearly be dependent on the actual financial performance out-turning 

in line with the revised budgets and there may be further budget changes required as the 
year progresses 

 
1.8 The Invest to Save Reserve had an opening balance of £2.984m at 1 April 2022. 

Commitments already made against this reserve for 2022/23 and future years amount to 
£1.063m leaving £1.921m uncommitted.  

 
1.9 The Resilience Reserve had an opening balance of £2.601m and after accounting for 

contributions made to the General Fund the estimated balance is £1.989m. This reserve 
will continue to be utilised to provide financial resilience to the General Fund in future 
years as required by Medium Term Financial Plan. Ongoing pressures arising from the 
Covid pandemic will also continue to be met from this reserve.  

 General Fund Balances 
 
1.10 The level of General Fund Balances has been maintained at £2.000m in this budget. The 

General Fund balances are considered to be at an acceptable level rather than generous. 
The General Fund balance needs to be considered against the background of ongoing 
reductions in the level of Government funding together with the range of risks facing the 
Council. With only a limited level of General Fund reserves it is crucial that the Council 
continues to maintain robust budgetary control while securing its ongoing savings targets 
in order to safeguard both its reserves and its financial sustainability. 

 

Page 76



5 
 

1.11 Given the current level of general balances, then the Council has a period of time in which 
to recover the situation. In a situation in which the Council were operating at a lower level 
of balances and an overspend or an under achievement of income occurred which took 
balances to below minimum level then immediate ‘crisis’ remedial action would need to 
be considered. Such a response is not conducive to sound financial management but 
more importantly would have a significant detrimental impact upon the Council’s ability to 
deliver the planned and agreed level of services to local residents. However, Cabinet will 
recognise that given a level of General Fund Balances of £2.000m, against the savings 
requirement in the Medium Term Financial Plan, the need to continue to tackle the 
underlying forecast budget deficit remains.  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The Housing Revenue Account revised budget for 2022/23 is set out in Appendix 3 to 
this report. 

 
Income 
 

1.12 Overall, there are no major income variances to report with both dwelling rent income 
£0.033m (0.10%) and non-dwelling rent income £0.078m higher than the current budget. 
Income from charges for services is slightly lower due to reduced court costs as a result 
of less court action throughout the pandemic. 

 
Expenditure 
 

1.13 Rykneld Homes Limited, who undertakes the management of the Council’s housing 
stock, is funded through the HRA by the payment of a management fee which for 2022/23 
is £10.398m. The 2023/24 fee will be recommended by Cabinet to Council as part of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan refresh.  

 
1.14 The remainder of the HRA expenditure is managed by the Council. The revised budget 

shows an increase against the current budget of £0.675m. This is largely the result of 
inflationary increases for services charged to the HRA from other services and the 
increased cost of the pay award.  Interest costs to the HRA are also £0.504m higher than 
the current budget, however this is offset by increased interest receivable of £0.623. 

 
1.15 Taking account of the proposed budget changes detailed above, the HRA is anticipated 

to deliver a deficit in the current financial year £0.018m higher than the current budget. 
No contributions are anticipated to be made to the HRA Insurance Reserve or the 
Development Reserve during 2022/23 creating an increased variance of £0.465 against 
the current budget. 

 
1.16 The HRA balance is being maintained at £3m in line with the level of financial risk facing 

the HRA. Maintenance of this balance is necessary as it will help ensure the financial and 
operational stability of the HRA which is essential if we are to maintain the level of 
services and quality of housing provided to our tenants. Given the changes to the rent 
setting process together with the increasing numbers of houses lost under Right to Buy 
the Council and Rykneld Homes will need to continue to work closely together in order to 
ensure the continued sustainability of the HRA over the life of the 30 year Business Plan.  
 
 
 
 

Page 77



6 
 

 
Capital Investment Programme 
  

 The Council’s capital programme is shown in Appendix 4. It has been updated from the 
original budgets to reflect approvals within the year and the profiling of the individual 
schemes following approved changes by Members and from detailed discussions with 
budget officers.   

 
 
1.17 HRA Schemes 
 

The housing investment programme for 2022/23 was increased post outturn to take 
account of the budgets rolled over from 2021/22 and has subsequently been profiled by 
£1.746m in relation to the North Wingfield New Build scheme. 

1.18 General Fund 
 

The General Fund element of the Capital Programme has also been increased to take 
account of budget rollovers from 2021/22. In addition, the budget has been increased to 
meet the cost of increased materials on the leisure centre carbon efficiency programmes 
and increased software costs on the ICT budget £0.529m, the re-profiling of the Clay 
Cross Town Fund project of £5.392m whilst also incorporating additional spend on 
Wingerworth Lido and roller shutter doors  £0.200m. This is partly offset by a reduction 
in the budget due to the re-profiling of replacement vehicles £1.134m. The General Fund 
budget has been revised for these and now totals £16.997m. 

  
 Capital Financing 

1.19 Appendix 4 also details how each scheme is financed. In summary: 
 
 HRA Capital Financing 
 
1.20 The HRA Capital Programme is financed from a combination of capital receipts, revenue 

contributions, prudential borrowing, use of reserves and grants.  
 
General Fund Capital Financing 

 
1.21 The General Fund Capital Programme is financed from a combination of capital receipts, 

revenue contributions, prudential borrowing and grants. The Prudential Borrowing 
financing arrangements were agreed by Council as part of the Treasury Management 
Strategy at its meeting in January 2022.       

 
2 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to prepare revised budgets as early as possible within the 

financial year to provide sufficient time to allow any planned changes to be delivered. The 
Council has faced financial challenges this year putting pressure on the ability to set a 
balanced General Fund budget but careful budget management, use of reserves ring 
fenced for providing resilience when needed, and the ongoing progression of the 
transformation agenda has mitigated this.  

 
 
 

Page 78



7 
 

 
3 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
3.1 There are no alternative options being considered at this time. How resources are utilised 

is ultimately a decision Members which will take as part of the 2023/24 Medium Term 
Financial Planning process.  

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
2 
3 
4 

General Fund Revised Budget - Summary 2022/23 
General Fund Revised Budget - Detail 2022/23 
HRA Revised Budget 2022/23 
Capital Expenditure Revised Budget 2022/23 

Background Papers  
 

 
 
 

Page 79



GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT - SUMMARY REVISED BUDGET 2022/23 APPENDIX 1

Original 
Budget 
2022/23

Current 
Budget 
2022/23

Revised 
Budget 
2022/23

Variance

£ £ £ £

Organisation and Place Directorate 6,452,489 6,457,192 6,307,574 (149,618)
Finance and Resources Directorate 3,837,563 3,704,217 4,431,699 727,482
Growth and Assets Directorate 2,447,728 2,573,575 3,132,967 559,392
Recharges to Capital and HRA (600,500) (600,500) (600,500) 0
Savings Target 0 0 0 0

Net Cost of Services 12,137,280 12,134,484 13,271,740 1,137,256

Investment Properties (424,175) (426,545) (458,160) (31,615)
Bad Debt Provision 40,000 40,000 40,000 0
Interest (114,010) (114,010) (397,126) (283,116)
Debt Repayment Minimum Revenue Provision 56,000 56,000 56,000 0
Parish Precepts 3,467,459 3,467,459 3,467,459 0
Transfer To Earmarked Reserves 68,615 319,919 635,956 316,037
Transfer From Earmarked Reserves (362,181) (608,319) (1,401,629) (793,310)
Transfer Shortfall From Resilience Reserve 0 0 (342,758) (342,758)

Total Spending Requirement 14,868,988 14,868,988 14,871,482 2,494

Business Rates (4,000,000) (4,000,000) (4,000,000) 0
New Homes Bonus (720,063) (720,063) (720,063) 0
Lower Tier Services Grant (318,843) (318,843) (321,337) (2,494)
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - Council Tax 0 0 0 0
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - NNDR 0 0 0 0
NEDDC Council Tax Requirement (6,362,623) (6,362,623) (6,362,623) 0
Parish Council Council Tax Requirement (3,467,459) (3,467,459) (3,467,459) 0

Council Tax Requirement (14,868,988) (14,868,988) (14,871,482) (2,494)

Page 80



GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT - DETAILED REVISED BUDGET 2022/23 APPENDIX 2

Original 
Budget 
2022/23

Current 
Budget 
2022/23

Revised 
Budget 
2022/23 Variance

£ £ £ £
Operations and Place Directorate

Managing Director & Head of Paid Service
4500 Managing Director 130,788 130,788 135,194 4,406
5700 Joint Strategic Director - Environment & Enforcement 0 0 0 0
5720 Supporting PA's 127,408 127,408 134,172 6,764

258,196 258,196 269,366 11,170

Assistant Director Environmental Health
3400 Environmental Protection 108,353 108,353 133,883 25,530
3401 Food, Health & Safety 122,311 122,311 118,457 (3,854)
3402 Environmental Enforcement 106,552 106,552 96,294 (10,258)
3403 Community Outreach 0 0 0 0
3404 Licensing 799 799 (8,050) (8,849)
3405 Pollution 121,387 121,387 110,827 (10,560)
3407 Pest Control 20,050 20,050 36,006 15,956
3408 Home Improvement 21,491 21,491 20,230 (1,261)
3409 EH Technical Support & Management 258,978 258,978 277,797 18,819
3410 Private Sector Housing 79,775 79,775 73,601 (6,174)
3419 Destitute Funerals 1,500 1,500 1,500 0
3420 Fly Tipping 3,000 3,000 3,000 0
3426 Covid Enforcement Team 0 0 61,000 61,000
3427 Private Water Supply Contract 0 0 0 0
3428 MEES Project 0 0 3,958 3,958
3726 Works In Default 0 0 0 0

844,196 844,196 928,503 84,307

Assistant Director Streetscene
3174 Street Scene 419,185 419,185 355,691 (63,494)
3227 Materials Recycling 446,467 446,467 308,479 (137,988)
3244 Parks Derbyshire County Council Agency (360,000) (360,000) (360,000) 0
3282 Eckington Depot 99,880 99,880 132,810 32,930
3285 Dronfield Bulk Depot 3,565 3,565 3,495 (70)
3511 Hasland Cemetery (45,850) (45,850) (47,915) (2,065)
3513 Temple Normanton Cemetery (8,080) (8,080) (4,385) 3,695
3514 Clay Cross Cemetery (59,685) (59,685) (62,185) (2,500)
3516 Killamarsh Cemetery (18,260) (18,260) (9,100) 9,160
3918 Dog Fouling Bins (57,150) (57,150) (58,451) (1,301)
3921 Street Cleaning Service 544,242 544,242 548,961 4,719
3943 Transport 405,971 405,971 425,591 19,620
3944 Grounds Maintenance 524,419 532,619 529,522 (3,097)
3945 Domestic Waste Collection 1,418,804 1,418,804 1,634,721 215,917
3946 Commercial Waste Collection (218,426) (218,426) (272,514) (54,088)

3,095,082 3,103,282 3,124,720 21,438

Assistant Director Planning
4111 Applications And Advice (588,400) (588,400) (693,000) (104,600)
4113 Planning Appeals 0 0 37,600 37,600
4116 Planning Policy 306,870 306,870 282,913 (23,957)
4311 Environmental Conservation 20,815 20,815 14,370 (6,445)
4511 Assistant Director - Planning 64,794 64,794 65,134 340
4513 Planning 840,140 834,643 712,628 (122,015)
4515 Building Control 58,000 58,000 58,000 0

702,219 696,722 477,645 (219,077)

Assistant Director Governance
1121 Member's Services 440,045 440,045 464,604 24,559
1123 Chair’s Expenses 6,700 6,700 6,310 (390)
1131 District Elections 0 0 11,325 11,325
1137 Parliamentary Elections 0 0 0 0
1138 Police & Crime Commissioner Elections 0 0 0 0
1139 County Council Elections 0 0 0 0
1231 Corporate Training 41,980 41,980 41,980 0
1259 Corporate Groups 1,000 1,000 2,400 1,400
1311 Human Resources 203,137 203,137 163,186 (39,951)

Page 81



Original 
Budget 
2022/23

Current 
Budget 
2022/23

Revised 
Budget 
2022/23 Variance

£ £ £ £
1312 Payroll 58,700 58,700 53,343 (5,357)
3121 Health & Safety Advisor 97,738 97,738 92,678 (5,060)
5250 National Civic Events 0 0 105 105
5273 Brass Band Concert 5,000 5,000 0 (5,000)
5313 Register Of Electors 160,716 162,716 177,342 14,626
5321 Assistant Director Governance 80,053 80,053 95,006 14,953
5353 Legal Section 165,492 165,492 171,992 6,500
5354 Land Charges (7,795) (7,795) (5,204) 2,591
5392 Scrutiny 53,763 53,763 34,577 (19,186)
5711 Democratic Services 246,267 246,267 197,696 (48,571)

1,552,796 1,554,796 1,507,340 (47,456)

Total for Organisation and Place Directorate 6,452,489 6,457,192 6,307,574 (149,618)

Finance & Resources Directorate

Director of Finance & Resources
1218 Community Safety 42,820 11,312 42,718 31,406
3165 Housing Options Team 196,951 196,951 216,909 19,958
3740 Strategic Housing 90,573 90,573 108,189 17,616
3745 Household Support Fund 0 0 0 0
3746 Homelessness Prevention Grant 16,500 0 0 0
3747 Homeless Temp Accomodation (35,818) (35,818) (55,092) (19,274)
3748 Homelessness Grant 111,000 31,918 34,847 2,929
3749 Empty Properties 2,000 2,000 1,500 (500)
3750 Housing Growth 15,681 15,681 16,936 1,255
3754 Rough Sleepers 0 0 0 0
3759 Emergency Welfare Assistance Grant 10,000 30,000 30,000 0

449,707 342,617 396,007 53,390

Assistant Director ICT
5215 Telephones 29,220 29,220 41,720 12,500
5216 Mobile Phones and Ipads 23,110 23,110 27,800 4,690
5701 Joint ICT Service 14,686 19,686 20,800 1,114
5734 NEDDC ICT Service 572,430 572,430 605,035 32,605
5735 Cyber Security 0 (2,472) (2,472) 0
5736 Business Development 118,380 118,380 110,154 (8,226)
5737 Corporate Printing Costs 15,890 15,890 17,525 1,635

773,716 776,244 820,562 44,318

Assistant Director Finance & Corporate Resources
1315 Design & Print 111,576 111,576 120,807 9,231
1321 Communications & Marketing 101,236 101,236 104,182 2,946
1323 NEDDC News 27,000 27,000 34,300 7,300
1329 Corporate Web Site 1,000 1,000 1,060 60
3176 Pool Car 360 360 250 (110)
3512 CBC Crematorium (173,000) (173,000) (200,000) (27,000)
5113 Unison Duties 17,346 17,346 16,537 (809)
5221 Customer Services 362,438 362,438 355,965 (6,473)
5223 Franking Machine 58,400 58,400 47,820 (10,580)
5611 External Audit 105,490 105,490 65,000 (40,490)
5615 Bank Charges 95,500 95,500 115,000 19,500
5621 Contribution to/from HRA (185,600) (185,600) (185,450) 150
5713 Audit 111,835 111,835 108,903 (2,932)
5714 Financial Support Services 3,500 3,500 5,000 1,500
5715 Procurement 49,650 49,650 38,654 (10,996)
5721 Financial Services 360,854 360,854 364,052 3,198
5724 Insurance 351,000 351,000 363,800 12,800
5725 Apprenticeship Levy 45,000 45,000 45,000 0
5727 Cost Of Ex-Employees 829,000 829,000 829,000 0
5728 Covid-19 Response 0 0 130,636 130,636
5729 Additional Restrictions Grant 0 0 15,171 15,171
5730 Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) 0 0 0 0
5731 Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open) 0 0 0 0
5738 Closed Business Lockdown Payments 0 0 0 0
5741 Housing Benefit Service 12,195 12,195 497,667 485,472
5742 Test & Trace 0 0 0 0

Page 82



Original 
Budget 
2022/23

Current 
Budget 
2022/23

Revised 
Budget 
2022/23 Variance

£ £ £ £
5743 Business restart Grant 0 0 0 0
5744 Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant 0 0 0 0
5745 Covid New Burdens 0 0 12,900 12,900
5747 Debtors 54,456 54,456 58,691 4,235
5751 NNDR Collection (6,635) (6,635) 4,033 10,668
5759 Council Tax Administration 291,734 291,734 305,386 13,652
5775 Council Tax Rebate 0 0 0 0
5776 Discretionary Fund 0 (28,784) (28,784) 0
5825 Concessionary Bus Passes (10,195) (10,195) (10,450) (255)

2,614,140 2,585,356 3,215,130 629,774

Total for Finance & Resources Directorate 3,837,563 3,704,217 4,431,699 727,482

Growth & Assets Directorate

Director of Growth & Assets
1143 Director of Growth 54,935 54,935 58,118 3,183
1283 Emergency Planning 16,000 16,000 16,000 0
4600 Director of Growth & Assets 105,661 105,661 105,478 (183)

176,596 176,596 179,596 3,000

Assistant Director Property, Estates & Assets
3135 Drainage 28,368 28,368 21,348 (7,020)
3172 Engineers 100,893 100,893 86,944 (13,949)
3241 Car Parks 47,300 47,300 46,065 (1,235)
3247 Street Names/Lights 5,000 5,000 5,000 0
3249 Footpath Orders (400) (400) (400) 0
3265 Dams And Fishing Ponds (450) (450) (450) 0
3281 Clay Cross Depot 0 0 650 650
3811 Closed Circuit Television 0 0 0 0
4412 Midway Business Centre (61,275) (58,905) (76,795) (17,890)
4425 Coney Green Business Centre (127,190) (127,190) (163,717) (36,527)
4523 Estates Administration 355,724 355,724 353,921 (1,803)
5204 Assistant Director Property, Estates & Assets 70,645 70,645 115,877 45,232
5205 Mill Lane 268,405 268,405 305,276 36,871
5209 Facilities Management 51,770 51,770 52,020 250
5210 Pioneer House (28,824) (28,824) (45,870) (17,046)

709,966 712,336 699,869 (12,467)

Assistant Director - Regeneration & Programmes
1255 Strategy and Performance 111,945 111,945 113,068 1,123
1256 Corporate Consultation 14,592 14,592 12,099 (2,493)
1331 Strategic Partnerships 204,585 204,585 217,992 13,407
1333 Healthy North East Derbyshire 49,000 49,000 49,423 423
4211 Tourism Promotions 45,561 45,561 34,982 (10,579)
4237 KickStarter Project 0 0 (1,567) (1,567)
4238 Working Communities Strategy 74,902 74,902 77,976 3,074
4352 LEADER 0 0 0 0
4443 Elderly Peoples Clubs 4,000 4,000 4,000 0
4512 Growth Agenda 16,000 16,000 16,000 0
4517 Economic Development 217,299 275,616 200,307 (75,309)
4521 Eckington Masterplan 0 65,160 65,160 0
4524 New Towns Fund - Clay Cross 0 0 0 0
5748 Ukranian Guests 0 0 0 0
5750 Assistant Director Regeneration & Programmes 38,671 38,671 37,859 (812)
5785 Contributions 136,085 136,085 136,085 0

912,640 1,036,117 963,384 (72,733)

Assistant Director Leisure
4561 Leisure Centre Management 155,201 155,201 233,627 78,426
4720 Sportivate 0 0 0 0
4722 Physical Inactivity Fund 0 0 0 0
4723 Generation Games 0 0 0 0
4724 Walking into Communities 11,000 11,000 11,000 0
4726 Walking For Health 0 0 0 0
4727 Five 60 0 0 0 0
4731 Promotion Of Recreation And Leisure 31,363 31,363 32,338 975

Page 83



Original 
Budget 
2022/23

Current 
Budget 
2022/23

Revised 
Budget 
2022/23 Variance

£ £ £ £
4732 Schools Promotion 0 0 0 0
4736 Derbyshire Sports Forum 14,450 14,450 14,450 0
4742 Arts Development 2,530 2,530 2,530 0
8441 Eckington Swimming Pool 118,337 118,337 215,935 97,598
8445 Eckington Pool Cafe (20,046) (20,046) (15,794) 4,252
8451 Dronfield Sports Centre (45,184) (45,184) 7,776 52,960
8455 Dronfield Café (8,588) (8,588) (1,590) 6,998
8461 Sharley Park Sports Centre 349,650 349,650 476,740 127,090
8465 Sharley Park Sports Centre Outdoor (3,700) (3,700) (2,405) 1,295
8471 Killamarsh Leisure Centre 60,401 60,401 289,901 229,500
8475 Killamarsh Outdoors (17,000) (17,000) (6,500) 10,500
8476 Killamarsh Café 112 112 32,110 31,998

648,526 648,526 1,290,118 641,592

Total for Growth & Assets Directorate 2,447,728 2,573,575 3,132,967 559,392

Corporate Charges
5790 Savings Target 0 0 0 0
0001 Recharges to Capital and HRA (600,500) (600,500) (600,500) 0

Total for Corporate Charges (600,500) (600,500) (600,500) 0

Net Cost of Services 12,137,280 12,134,484 13,271,740 1,137,256

Investment Properties

4411 Stonebroom Industrial Estate (41,465) (41,465) (57,540) (16,075)
4413 Clay Cross Industrial Estate (79,690) (79,690) (84,980) (5,290)
4415 Norwood Industrial Estate (226,500) (226,500) (229,145) (2,645)
4417 Eckington Business Park (6,200) (6,200) 11,400 17,600
4418 Rotherside Court Eckington Business Unit (9,785) (9,785) (26,995) (17,210)
4423 Pavillion Workshops Holmewood (86,865) (87,865) (89,795) (1,930)
4432 Miscellaneous Properties 26,330 24,960 18,895 (6,065)

Total for Investment Properties (424,175) (426,545) (458,160) (31,615)

Page 84



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - SUMMARY REVISED BUDGET 2022/23 APPENDIX 3

Original 
Budget 
2022/23                    

£

Current 
Budget 
2022/23                          

£

Revised 
Budget 
2022/23                             

£   
Variance

£
INCOME
Dwelling Rents (32,130,380) (32,130,380) (32,163,410) (33,030)
Non-Dwelling Rents (432,222) (432,222) (510,590) (78,368)
Charges for Services and Facilities (150,426) (150,426) (112,226) 38,200
Contributions Towards Expenditure (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 0

INCOME TOTAL (32,763,028) (32,763,028) (32,836,226) (73,198)

EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance 5,169,479 5,169,479 5,168,667 (812)
Supervision and Management 6,425,009 6,425,009 7,101,123 676,114
Rents, Rates & Taxes 110,000 110,000 110,000 0
Capital Charges - Depreciation 7,737,791 7,737,791 7,737,791 0
Provision for Bad Debts 250,000 250,000 250,000 0
Debt Management Expenses 11,500 11,500 11,500 0

EXPENDITURE TOTAL 19,703,779 19,703,779 20,379,081 675,302

NET COST OF SERVICES (13,059,249) (13,059,249) (12,457,145) 602,104

Corporate & Democratic Core 185,450 185,450 185,450 0

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (12,873,799) (12,873,799) (12,271,695) 602,104

Interest Payable 4,729,461 4,729,461 5,233,480 504,019
Interest Receivable (6,835) (6,835) (629,712) (622,877)
Transfer to/(from) Resilience Reserve 0 0 (17,782) (17,782)
Transfer to HRA Insurance Reserve 50,000 50,000 0 (50,000)
Contribution to MRR 7,685,709 7,685,709 7,685,709 0
Contribution to Development Reserve 415,464 415,464 0 (415,464)

(Surplus)/Deficit on HRA Services 0 0 0 0

Opening HRA Balance (3,000,000) (3,000,000) (3,000,000) 0

Transfers (to)/from Balances 0 0 0 0

Closing HRA Balance (3,000,000) (3,000,000) (3,000,000) 0

Page 85



CAPITAL PROGRAMME - REVISED BUDGET 2022/23 Appendix 4

Capital Expenditure

Original 
Budget 
2022/23              

£

Current 
Budget 
2022/23               

£

Revised 
Budget 
2022/23                

£

Variance

£

Housing Revenue Account
Capital Works - Council Housing 10,824,000 12,272,000 12,272,000 0
Capital Works - Non-Traditional Properties 4,600,000 4,600,000 4,600,000 0
Garage Demolitions 23,000 60,000 60,000 0
Concrete Balconies 0 111,000 111,000 0
Pine View Danesmoor 70,000 832,000 832,000 0
Parking Solutions 288,000 573,000 573,000 0
Green Homes EWI - Mickley 0 333,000 333,000 0
North Wingfield New Build Scheme 0 1,961,000 215,000 (1,746,000)
Stock Purchase Programme 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 0
Acquisitions & Disposals (RHL) 500,000 500,000 500,000 0

HRA - Capital Expenditure 18,805,000 23,742,000 21,996,000 (1,746,000)

General Fund
Private Sector Housing Grants (DFG's) 820,000 820,000 820,000 0
Asset Refurbishment - General 500,000 609,000 609,000 0
Eckington Depot Refurbishment 0 582,000 732,000 150,000
Roller Shutter Doors 0 36,000 86,000 50,000
Eckington Pool Carbon Efficiency Programme 0 231,000 266,000 35,000
Killamarsh Leisure Centre Refurbishment 0 1,060,000 1,060,000 0
Dronfield Sports Centre Carbon Efficiency Programme 1,380,000 1,380,000 1,680,000 300,000
Clay Cross Football Pitch 0 9,000 9,000 0
Replacement of Vehicles 2,976,000 3,427,000 2,292,500 (1,134,500)
Contaminated Land 0 42,000 42,000 0
ICT Schemes 248,000 416,000 460,000 44,000
Wingerworth Lido 0 0 150,000 150,000
CX Town Market Street Regeneration 0 1,999,000 0 (1,999,000)
CX Town Clay Cross Skills and Enterprise Hub 0 500,000 0 (500,000)
CX Town Clay Cross Creative (inc LC Energy Network) 0 0 150,000 150,000
CX Town Sharley Park Active Community Hub 0 295,000 7,145,000 6,850,000
CX Town Low Carbon Housing Challenge Fund 0 0 650,000 650,000
CX Town Rail Station Feasability 0 150,000 150,000 0
CX Town Programme Management 0 174,000 415,000 241,000
CX Acc Fund Old Constabulary 0 150,000 0 (150,000)
CX Acc Fund School Demolition 0 8,000 158,000 150,000
CX Acc Fund CX Depot Demolition 0 86,000 86,000 0
CX Acc Fund Public Art Work 0 32,000 32,000 0
CX Acc Fund Land Assembly 0 3,000 3,000 0
CX Acc Fund Other 0 2,000 2,000 0

General Fund Capital Expenditure 5,924,000 12,011,000 16,997,500 4,986,500

Total Capital Expenditure 24,729,000 35,753,000 38,993,500 3,240,500

Page 86



Capital Financing

Original 
Budget 
2022/23              

£

Current 
Budget 
2022/23               

£

Revised 
Budget 
2022/23                

£

Variance

£

Housing Revenue Account
Major Repairs Reserve (15,424,000) (17,125,000) (17,125,000) 0
Prudential Borrowing - HRA (1,800,000) (3,156,000) (2,015,000) 1,141,000
Development Reserve (381,000) (1,596,000) (1,596,000) 0
External Grant 0 0 0 0
Capital Receipts Reserve 0 0 0 0
1-4-1 Receipts (1,200,000) (1,865,000) (1,260,000) 605,000
HRA Capital Financing (18,805,000) (23,742,000) (21,996,000) 1,746,000

General Fund
Disabled Facilities Grant (820,000) (820,000) (820,000) 0
External Grant (1,347,000) (4,797,000) (10,189,000) (5,392,000)
Prudential Borrowing (1,417,000) (3,453,000) (2,660,000) 793,000
RCCO - Roller Shutter Doors 0 (36,000) (86,000) (50,000)
Useable Capital Receipts (2,340,000) (2,905,000) (3,242,500) (337,500)
General Fund Capital Financing (5,924,000) (12,011,000) (16,997,500) (4,986,500)

HRA Development Reserve
Opening Balance (2,551,185) (2,551,185) (2,551,185) 0
Amount due in year (415,000) (415,000) 0 415,000
Amount used in year 381,000 1,596,000 1,596,000 0
Closing Balance (2,585,185) (1,370,185) (955,185) 415,000

Major Repairs Reserve
Opening Balance (2,238,257) (2,238,257) (2,238,257) 0
Amount due in year (15,424,000) (15,424,000) (15,423,500) 500
Amount used in year 15,424,000 17,125,000 17,125,000 0
Closing Balance (2,238,257) (537,257) (536,757) 500

Capital Receipts Reserve
Opening Balance (2,340,000) (2,340,000) (2,340,168) (168)
Income expected in year (3,000,000) (3,000,000) (3,000,000) 0
Debt Repayment/Other Expenses 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0
Amount used in year 2,340,000 2,905,000 3,242,500 337,500
Closing Balance (2,000,000) (1,435,000) (1,097,668) 337,332

Capital Receipts Reserve 1-4-1 receipts
Opening Balance (763,000) (763,000) (762,969) 31
Income expected in year (1,200,000) (1,200,000) (1,820,000) (620,000)
Amount used in year 1,963,000 1,963,000 1,260,000 (703,000)
Closing Balance 0 0 (1,322,969) (1,322,969)

Total Capital Financing (24,729,000) (35,753,000) (38,993,500) (3,240,500)

Page 87



North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Cabinet 
 

24 November 2022 
 

Development of a Community Outreach Service 
 

Report of Councillor Cupit, Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services  
 
Classification: This report is public.  
 
Report By:  Samantha Bentley, Environmental Health Service Manager 
 
Contact Officer: As above. 
 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
As part of the Council’s response to the cost of living crisis, the proposal is to 
develop a Community Outreach Service, which will deliver individual support to 
residents on maximising income, making referrals for debt management, advising 
and assisting with fuel debt, general budgeting and assistance with form filling and 
accessing services. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
1. To develop a Community Outreach Service for residents of North East 

Derbyshire District Council. 
 
2. To create two Community Outreach Worker posts, as 2 year fixed term 

contracts at Grade 7.  Should recruitment be unsuccessful, then one or both 
posts may be delivered by an external provider via contract.  Posts to be fully 
funded by the Better Care Fund (BCF) allocation. 

 
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Cllr Cupit, Cabinet Member for Environmental 

Services 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☐  No ☐  

Details: 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☐  

Details: 
 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☐   

Details: 
 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☒   Cabinet ☐ 

SMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☒ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
Details: The Deputy 
Leader has been consulted 
on the proposals in this 
report. 
 
 

 

Links to Council Plan priorities, including Climate Change, Equalities, and 
Economics and Health implications. 

The key Council Plan priorities delivered through Community Outreach would be: 
Protecting the most vulnerable in our community and helping communities address 
local issues and concerns. 

 
  

Page 89



REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background  
 
1.1 As the well-publicised cost of living crisis takes hold, this proposal aims to equip 

the Local Authority to respond in the most effective way possible, by providing 
direct support and advice to residents in need of help. 
 

1.2 Organisations are reporting that the demand for advice and support is growing.  
Citizens Advice Bureau at a recent energy conference reported that the current 
demand for energy advice is beyond anything they have ever experienced. The 
debt charity ‘Step Change’ have said that during August this year, they 
experienced their highest ever levels of debt advice requests.  22% of these 
clients cited cost of living as a cause of their debt, yet previously this cause was 
cited by only 4% to 5%.  In addition, at the same conference, the organisation 
Christians Against Poverty, reported that the demand for fuel vouchers was at 
their usual winter levels during July this year. 

 
1.3  An existing Community Outreach Service is delivered in the Bolsover District 

Council area and is a well-established function, managed by the Joint 
Environmental Health Service.  There are two Community Outreach Workers 
covering the whole of Bolsover District.  The posts are on the establishment as 
revenue funded posts.  The delivery focusses on the following themes: - 

 

 Support to ensure residents are receiving the financial help available 

 Help with budgeting to reflect residents’ individual circumstances 

 Referral to debt advice agencies 

 Support in tackling food and fuel poverty 

 Help to deal with letters and forms 

 Referral to specialist agencies to meet the resident’s needs 

 Help with improving physical, mental and emotional wellbeing 

 Close working with partner agencies to support families in need of 
additional support and interventions 

 
 Whilst the service is flexible to the needs of residents in need of help and 
support, the demand for the service has predominantly been around advice and 
support for financial assistance.   

 
1.4 The Bolsover Community Outreach Service has experienced an increase in 

requests for service.  In the year 2019/20 (pre-covid lockdowns) the service 
handled 450 cases (with multiple interventions per case).  In the year 2021/22 
there were 599 cases (a 33% increase on 2019/20) and by quarter 2 this year, 
they have already handled 371 cases, indicating a further increase in this year.  
It should be noted that no additional marketing or advertising has been done, 
due to the finite existing capacity and ability to meet demand.  Each case can 
be very detailed and therefore involve many hours’ worth of assistance, with 
multiple visits and interventions. 
 
 

1.5 The links between housing and health are widely understood. A Community 
Outreach Service is ultimately aiming to assist our residents to live or remain in 

Page 90



a safe and healthy home, and to assist their overall health and wellbeing.  It is 
of course anticipated that with the increasing crisis, the impact on our resident’s 
mental health will increase also.  It is therefore important that outreach support 
is provided and that appropriate referrals are made. 
 

1.6 The existing Community Outreach Service delivered in Bolsover is very well 
integrated with the range of other council services, as well as external 
organisations. The strong links mean that cases are easily cross referred, 
ensuring the customer receives a wide suite of interventions and support, as 
opposed to a narrow, focussed intervention which deals with only finite matters.   
The attached case studies demonstrate the depth and breadth of interventions 
and support. 
 

1.7 The close integration is also demonstrated by the fact that many cases are 
shared with other teams in Environmental Health across the wider housing and 
public health functions.  In particular, the Housing Assistance Coordinator role, 
which delivers specialist support around energy efficiency and fuel poverty. 
 

1.8 As a shared service, Environmental Health has valuable experience in this 
approach to service delivery, hence it being appropriate to expand on an 
already successful and established delivery arrangement. 

 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 To develop a Community Outreach Service in the NEDDC area as an extension 

to the service already delivered by Environmental Health. 
 
2.2 To fund the workers using the Better Care Fund (BCF) allocation, for which 

permission has been sought.  Due to the funding source, it is not possible to 
obtain permanent funding and so the proposal is to create two posts funded by 
the BCF, initially for 2 years. The posts will be Grade 7 at £33,461.84 including 
salary on costs.  The total cost for two years will therefore be in the region of 
£134,000 plus mileage costs and subject to pay awards. 

 
2.3 The service will focus on the needs of residents and any advice or assistance 

we can provide around financial hardship and the impact of the cost of living 
crisis.  Although the demand will inevitably be around the cost of living and 
financial difficulties, the services will include: - 

 

 Support to ensure residents are receiving the financial help available 

 Help with budgeting to reflect the residents individual circumstances 

 Referral to debt advice agencies 

 Support in tackling food and fuel poverty 

 Help to deal with letter and forms 

 Referral to specialist agencies to meet the resident’s needs 

 Help with improving physical, mental and emotional wellbeing 

 Close working with partner agencies to support families in need of 
additional support and interventions 

 

Page 91



2.4 Community Outreach will not only act as a sign-posting service, but will also 
provide direct assistance and support to residents, helping with form filling and 
helping to maximise income. 

 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 To provide a response to the national cost of living crisis which is within the 

remit of Local Authority functions. 
 
3.2 To make use of available funding to deliver positive outcomes against shared  

housing and public health priorities. 
 
3.3 To complement existing Local Authority services and provide a wider range of 

interventions, additional to signposting alone. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Whilst to do nothing is clearly an option, the reason for rejection is that there is 

an existing service to build upon, with available funding to support a temporary 
service provision. 

 
4.2 The establishment of a service with permanent funding has been rejected due 

to the growth in establishment costs and the revenue implications.  
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 Bolsover BDC Community Outreach Case Studies. 

  

  

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



Appendix 1: Bolsover BDC Community Outreach Case Studies 
 
Case One. 

‘Sarah’ was referred to the Community Outreach Service from social care when she 

was three months pregnant: at the time she was homeless, unemployed and sofa 

surfing with a friend with two small children who was also receiving support from 

social care.  

This was an entirely inappropriate situation for both women and meant that social 

care were very concerned for the wellbeing of all the children involved, Sarah had 

previously had a child removed from her care and was a known substance misuser.  

Sarah was not receiving any DWP benefits and had no income at all, meaning that 

she was unable to buy food for herself or her dog or to make any contribution to the 

house where she was staying. The first action that Community Outreach addressed 

was helping Sarah to apply for ESA (Employment support allowance) which would 

give her an amount of money to live on, Community Outreach also helped her to 

complete a Bolsover District council Housing application as well as offering her 

support and guidance in looking for privately rented accommodation. 

Unfortunately, Sarah was unable to find suitable accommodation before her baby 

was born, and due to this her baby was removed by social care shortly after his birth. 

At this point, Sarah’s social worker referred Sarah back to the Community Outreach 

Service with the hope that given support to improve her financial and housing 

situation, Sarah could help to improve her situation to the extent of gaining back 

custody of her son. At this point, Community Outreach worked alongside BDC 

housing department to ensure that Sarah was offered a suitable flat that was 

appropriate for her needs. Community Outreach ensured that Sarah had applied for 

housing benefit. Assistance was given to Sarah to help her mange her finances 

before her son could be considered for return to her care. 

Sarah rang the Community Outreach a month after this to say that she was not 

coping financially, this was due to the flat being a two bedroom property. Sarah was 

under occupying and was not receiving all of the rent. She now had rent arrears, and 

other debts. 

Payment plans were arranged for her to pay her council tax, rent arrears, TV licence 

and her water rates. Sarah had made good progress with these, making payments to 

address them, however she needed guidance on suitable amounts to pay to make all 

the household payments manageable. 

A Discretionary Housing Payment was applied for to help meet Sarah’s under 

occupancy fee which she had to pay until her son returned to her care. This would 

stop her rent arrears increasing and she could concentrate on reducing these. 

Sarah’s son was returned to her when he was 6 months old and Community 

Outreach helped her to ensure that all child related benefits were put in place. The 

Page 93



Service also applied for a Derbyshire discretionary fund for carpets and other 

essential items, and this was successful. To ensure that Sarah stayed on top of her 

finances, she worked with Community Outreach to do a personal budget plan which 

would allow her to stay on top of all her bills. Sarah had surplus income at the end of 

every week which she expressed would be spent on any extra essential items for 

herself or Nathan and she would look to saving for the future. We also discussed 

Sarah’s desire to further her education, prepare her CV and look for a career. Since 

this intervention Sarah has kept to payment plans set up for her and fully cooperated 

at every meeting, asking for help if she needs it. She continues to keep custody of 

her son. 

 

Case Two. 

‘Carol’ was referred to the Community Outreach Service from the DCC multi agency 

team as her teenage grandson had recently moved in with her due to a breakdown in 

family relationships and was NEET (Not in education, employment or training). 

Community Outreach went to see Carol originally to do a benefit check and ensure 

that child benefit and child tax were being claimed, they weren’t so Community 

Outreach ensured that these were applied for at the first engagement with the client, 

but it also became apparent that Carol was struggling due to severe arthritis and 

COPD and was unaware that she was able to claim PIP (personal independence 

payment) due to these disabilities.  

Community Outreach helped Carol to apply for PIP and at this point Carol disclosed 

that she was not coping financially and had had her housing and council tax benefit 

suspended due to not reporting a change in circumstance. As a result she was now 

in arrears with both her rent and council tax. Community Outreach rang BDC 

benefits to find out what documents needed to be produced and told Carol exactly 

what steps she needed to follow in order to have her benefits reinstated. Even 

though, her benefits were put back in place, this lady now had rent arrears so 

Community Outreach mediated with the landlord to help to facilitate a payment plan 

which would be manageable. This was done with Carol’s input into a personal 

budget plan which clearly showed her how she could manage her finances. 

The PIP application was successful which allowed Carol to help manage her 

household finances more effectively. Carol’s grandson is now in an educational 

package and so is no longer NEET. 

 
 

Page 94



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 112

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 118

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 210

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 216

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	4 Proposed Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 2022-23
	Appendix 1(a) Audit Work Programme 22-23 28 Sept
	Appendix 1(b) Communities Work Programme  2022-23
	Appendix 1(c) Growth Work Programme 2022-23
	Appendic 1(d) Organisation Work Programme

	5 Tourism - Business and Non Business Scrutiny Review
	6 Council Plan Targets Performance Update 2022-23:  Quarter 2
	Appendix 1 Council Plan Targets Update  July to September 2022

	7 Medium Term Financial Plan - Revised Budgets 2022-23
	8 Development of a Community Outreach Service
	11 Sharley Park Development - NOW PUBLISHED
	12 Clay Cross Town Deal Outline Business Case, Town Centre Regeneration (Local Assurance)
	Appendix 1 Business Case

	13 Clay Cross Town Deal Outline Business Case, Low Carbon Challenge Fund (Local Assurance)
	Appendix 1 Business Case


